
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Letter from Tina Guidry Requesting Changes to Kerman
Municipal Code Related to Domestic Animals

Guidry letter 6
Minutes

April 15, 2015 8
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 11
Warrants

Accounts Payable 17
Proclamation - Proclaiming May as Building and Safety Month

Proclamation 41
Resolution Appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney

Staff Report - Legal Services Agreement 42
Resolution Appointing and Reappointing Members to
Community Service and Recreation Commission

Staff Report 58
Resolution Affirming Use of Sole Source Purchase for the Kids
Climbing Wall Using Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Funds

Staff Report - Sole Source 60
Abatement Hearing for the Removal of Weeds and Rubbish

Staff Report - Abatement Hearing 66
Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 14452 W.
Kearney Boulevard

Staff Report - Hernandez Utilities 72
Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for
Landscape and Lighting District No. 1

Staff Report - LMD Intent to Levy 81
Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budgets for Fiscal
Year 2015/2016

Staff Report-Preliminary Budget Report 86

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 6, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or inspirational 
thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to recruit converts, to 
advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps forward, we will observe a 
moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Letter from Tina Guidry Requesting Changes to Kerman Municipal Code Related to 
Domestic Animals (MR) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Guidry letter 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: April 15, 2015 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll Reports:  
 
March 29, 2015 - April 11, 2015: $121,629.63; Overtime: $3,091.32; Standby: $988.30; 
Comp Time Earned: 1.50 
 
April 12, 2015 - April 25, 2015: $121,509.13; Overtime: $3,348.01; Standby: $1,221.40; 
Comp Time Earned: 14.25 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos. 6164-6355: $519,439.98 

2. Excepting -  Sebastian: 6231 - $3,111.31 
 Valley Food: 6270 - 374.55 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Proclamation - Proclaiming May as Building and Safety Month (CK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion proclaim May as Building and Safety Month 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Proclamation 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution appointing Hilda Cantu 
Montoy as City Attorney and authorizing the Mayor to sign the legal services agreement 
on behalf of the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Legal Services Agreement 

3



F. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing and Reappointing Members to Community Service and 
Recreation Commission (PG) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution appointing/reappointing 
Commissioners, Teixeira, Amaro and Garcia to the Community Services and Recreation 
Commission. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report 
 

G. SUBJECT: Resolution Affirming Use of Sole Source Purchase for the Kids Climbing Wall 
Using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds (PG) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution affirming that Sole Source 
procurement complies with local and government procurement requirements for the 
purchase of Playground Climbing Wall Materials using Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Sole Source  
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

These hearings are scheduled at the time stated and will be heard by the Council as close to 
the time stated as possible. 
 

A. SUBJECT: Abatement Hearing for the Removal of Weeds and Rubbish (CK) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council open hearing to receive objections or protests from 
property owners, close the hearing, and adopt by motion resolution ordering the 
abatement of weeds and rubbish. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Abatement Hearing 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 14452 W. Kearney 
Boulevard (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving Agreement for 
Utility Service for Manuel and Maria Hernandez at 14452 W. Kearney Boulevard. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Hernandez Utilities 
 

B. SUBJECT: Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for Landscape and 
Lighting District No. 1 (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution of intention to levy and collect 
the annual assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 and set the date for 
the required public hearing for June 17, 2015. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - LMD Intent to Levy 
 

4



C. SUBJECT: Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council to review preliminary General Fund Budget and provide 
input and direction accordingly. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report-Preliminary Budget Report 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. 1st Annual Almond Festival - Saturday, May 9, 11 a.m. - 3 p.m., Kerckoff Park 

B. Liberty Elementary Mock Student Council Meeting - Tuesday, May 12, 10 a.m., Council 
Chambers 

C. Sebastian's Open House - Thursday, May 14, 5-8 p.m. 7600 N Palm Ave. Fresno 

D. Westside Veterans Memorial Building Opening Ceremony - May 16, 10 a.m., 1020 S. 
Siskiyou Avenue 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 45956.9(a) Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending 
Litigation: Pacific Mountain Partners 

B. Government Code Section 45957 Public Employee Evaluation - Title: City Manager 

 
COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



April 28, 2015 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Reyes,  
 
I am writing to you requesting a time to meet with the Kerman City Council. My daughter is a 
very active member of the Clovis Blossom Trails 4H club. She is an officer, and attends 
meetings for 5 projects.  
 
Mia Guidry, my daughter, would like to request to the City Council that she be able to keep her 2 
Dwarf Goats (both dis-budded and castrated), her 4 bunnies, and 4 laying hens (not roosters). All 
are animals that my daughter shows at the Big Fresno Fair, Bunny shows around California, and 
4H Fair. No animals are market animals. All are pedigree and are used for showmanship, and 
conformation classes only (including the hens). 
  
Kerman is an Ag community, and has it's very own, very active 4h club and FFA. (the only 
reason Mia is not a member of the Kerman 4h is because when we were looking into joining the 
club, Kerman did not have a horse project. Mia is also a very active equestrian.) We would like 
to talk to the City Council and see if it would be possible to maybe allow members of these clubs 
keep their animal projects at their home if they live within  the city limits. Of course, within 
reason. My suggestions would be: Animals under 80 pounds,  2 Dwarf goats (not 1, not 3, but 2 
because goats are a herd animal and need companionship), no more than one laying hen per 
family member in household, no breeding of any animal, non altered animals such as rabbits, 
chinchillas, and guinea pigs should be kept in separate cages to prevent breeding, no slaughtering 
of any animal on any city property, animals pens/cages must be kept clean and animal must be 
properly fed and cared for as per Animal Control's dog and cat rules, etc) OR, we could just 
adopt what a city in Texas has in their Municipal code,  with a population about the same as 
Kerman (15,700):  
 
City of Brenhman, Texas: 
Sec. 5-18. Special exemptions for youth projects. 
Animals which are part of a youth project, such as FFA, 4-H or the Washington County Fair or 
other, may be considered an exception to the provisions listed in this article on the authority of 
the animal control supervisor. Cattle and/or horses are not included as an exemption. Other 
animals such as sheep, goats, rabbits and fowl may be considered; however, certain 
requirements must be met, including premise inspection by the animal control supervisor and 
adequate space for the housing and care of the animals. (Ord. of 9-17-98, § 1)  
 
Many major cities (among San Diego, Madison, and Seattle) allow miniature goats as pets, with 
no ill effects or problems. Dwarf goats are non aggressive animals. They do not have sharp teeth 
and they do not attack nor desire to attack small animals or children like dogs. They do not cross 
boundary lines like cats. They are smaller than most dogs. Their feces are great fertilizer for 
flowerbeds and grass and does not attract flies, and they are very willing to keep weeds under 
control in their owners yard!  The city of Visalia among others has also allowed their residence 
to keep chickens in their city limits. Chickens are a valuable member of some families because 

6



they can provide a family with food daily (eggs). Chickens are also great pest (bugs and spiders) 
control. There are many other great positives of keeping smaller "livestock" animals such as 
dwarf goats, laying hens, bunnies, chinchillas, guinea pigs etc.... These animals teach children 
responsibility, they educate children, and enrich lives.  
 
I am also working on talking to each of my neighbors and asking for them to sign a petition 
stating that they approve of my daughters 4h projects being housed in our own backyard. I have 
talked to every neighbor that is in contact with my backyard fence and they all think it is a great 
thing to keep our animals at our home and do not have a problem with it.  
 
I am also willing to get a petition signed by other members of the City of Kerman from different 
neighborhoods around town if the City Council would like.  
 
http://cityofbrenham.org/admin/ordinances/CH005_-_Chapter_5_ANIMAL_AND_FOWL.pdf 
 
 
Tina Guidry 
559-970-6541 
 

7

http://cityofbrenham.org/admin/ordinances/CH005_-_Chapter_5_ANIMAL_AND_FOWL.pdf


MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, April 15, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:35 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
GY/RA (5-0-0) 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS Presented 

A. The S.E.A.R.C.H 2015 (PG)  

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: March 15, 2015 - March 28, 2015: $124,721.74; Retro Pay: 
$30.88; Overtime: $2,514.01; Standby: $1,194.93; Comp Time Earned: 18.50 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 6164-6237: $128,962.84 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved  
GY/BN (4-0 -1) 
RA  
 

 

 

 

 

 

8



D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented 

 

E. SUBJECT: Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for 
Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 (JJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution to initiate 
proceedings for the annual levy of assessments for Landscape and Lighting 
District No. 1 and authorize the City Engineer to file his annual report. 

Res 15-12 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Contract to Merzon Consulting to Facilitate 
City Council Goal Setting Workshop (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution awarding contract 
to Merzon Consulting in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000 to facilitate City 
Council goal setting workshop and authorize the City Manager to sign on 
behalf of the City of Kerman. 

Res 15-13 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Kerman Police Department 2014 Annual Report (JB) Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive the 2014 Annual Report presented by 
Chief of Police Joseph Blohm. 

 

B. SUBJECT: Presentation of Pavement Management System (JJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council select the preferred alternative for pavement 
management and direct Staff to begin implementing the preferred 
alternative. 

Approved 
GY/RA (5-0-0) 

C. SUBJECT: First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending 
Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to Emergency Shelters, 
Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council introduce, waive further reading, and set a 
public hearing for May 6, 2015 for adoption of an Ordinance No. 15-01 
amending Chapter 17.90.020 and adding Section 17.92 to Chapter 17 of the 
Kerman Municipal Code relating to emergency shelters, transitional and 
supportive housing for the homeless. 

Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 

D. SUBJECT: Kerman Potable Water System Overview (KM) Informational 
Only 

RECOMMENDATION: Ken Moore and Jerry Jones will present a PowerPoint 
presentation on the City's potable water system as an informational item. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 

 

9



6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Chamber of Commerce Installation Dinner - April 23, 2015, 5:30 p.m.   

B. Relay for Life, May 2 & 3, 9 a.m., Kerman High School Football Field  

C. Council Goal Setting Workshop - Tuesday, May 5, 8:30 a.m. – 2 p.m., Council 
Chambers 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Government Code Section 54956.9 Liability Claim - Claimant: J.H. Boyd 
Enterprises Inc.; Agency Claimed Against: City of Kerman 

B. Government Code Section 54957 Public Employment - Title: City Attorney 

No reportable 
action 

No reportable 
action 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN  

8. ADJOURNMENT Adjourned 
10:40 p.m. 
BN/NF (5-0-0) 

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: April 16, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 
CITY OF KERMAN 

 

Proclamation 
 

Building and Safety Month  
 
Whereas, our the City of Kerman’s continuing efforts to address the critical issues of safety, energy 
efficiency, water conservation, and resilience in the built environment that affect our citizens, both in 
everyday life and in times of natural disaster, give us confidence that our structures are safe and 
sound, and;   
 
Whereas, our confidence is achieved through the devotion of vigilant guardians––building safety and 
fire prevention officials, architects, engineers, builders, tradespeople, laborers and others in the 
construction industry––who work year-round to ensure the safe construction of buildings, and; 
 
Whereas, these guardians—dedicated members of the International Code Council—use a 
governmental consensus process  that brings together local, state and federal officials with expertise 
in the built environment to create and implement the highest-quality codes to protect Americans in 
the buildings where we live, learn, work, worship, play, and; 
 
Whereas, the International Codes, the most widely adopted building safety, energy and fire 
prevention codes in the nation, are used by most U.S. cities, counties and states; these modern 
building codes also include safeguards to protect the public from natural disasters such as hurricanes, 
snowstorms, tornadoes, wildland fires, floods and earthquakes, and; 
 
Whereas, Building Safety Month is sponsored by the International Code Council, to remind the public 
about the critical role of our communities’ largely unknown guardians of public safety––our local 
code officials––who assure us of safe, efficient and livable buildings, and; 
 
Whereas, “Resilient Communities Start with Building Codes” the theme for Building Safety Month 
2015, encourages all Americans to raise awareness of the importance of building safe and resilient 
construction; fire prevention; disaster mitigation, water safety and conservation; energy efficiency 
and new technologies in the construction industry. Building Safety Month 2015 encourages 
appropriate steps everyone can take to ensure that the places where we live, learn, work, worship 
and play are safe and sustainable, and recognizes that countless lives have been saved due to the 
implementation of safety codes by local and state agencies, and, 
 
Whereas, each year, in observance of Building Safety Month, Americans are asked to consider 
projects to improve building safety and sustainability at home and in the community, and to 
acknowledge the essential service provided to all of us by local and state building departments, fire 
prevention bureaus and federal agencies in protecting lives and property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Stephen B. Hill, Mayor of the City of Kerman, on this 6th day of May, do hereby 
proclaim the month of May 2015 as Building Safety Month. Accordingly, I encourage our citizens to 
join with their communities in participation in Building Safety Month activities. 
 
 
 
        _____________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 

41



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox           Bill Nijjer 

DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Resolution Appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney and authorizing the Mayor to 
sign the legal services agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On April 1, 2015, Mark Blum advised the City Council that he will be retiring from practice effective July 1, 2015. 
Mark has served as the City Attorney since 2007, and has worked on City matters since 1989. Following Mark’s 
announcement, the City Council directed staff to solicit letters of interest from the top two attorneys that were 
interviewed as part of the Request for Proposals issued in 2012. Hilda Cantu Montoy and Jerry Behrens with Lozano 
Smith submitted letters of interest. The City Council interviewed both firms on April 15, 2015 and directed staff to 
negotiate a contract with Hilda Cantu Montoy and present the contract to the City Council for approval on May 6. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
As directed by the City Council, staff solicited a legal services agreement from Hilda Cantu Montoy. The agreement 
was reviewed by Mark Blum and found to be acceptable. A copy of the legal services agreement is attached as 
Exhibit ‘A’ to the Resolution. Under the terms of the agreement, Hilda Cantu Montoy will serve as the City Attorney 
for the City of Kerman and will be compensated at $165 per hour for legal services plus a monthly retainer of $850 
for attendance at two Council meetings. Hilda will not charge for any administrative fees and for travel time for 
meetings with Council and/or staff. Hourly rates for special legal services will be billed at higher rates: $185 for 
pitches motions and $225 for administrative hearing and litigation. 
 
As reflected in the letter of interest enclosed as Attachment ‘B’, Hilda Cantu Montoy has practiced municipal law 
since 1976. She received her B.S. in Political Science from Stanford University in 1973 followed by her Juris 
Doctorate from Stanford Law School in 1976. Prior to forming her own law practice, Hilda was the City Attorney for 
the City of Fresno from 1995 to 2006. Hilda has represented several cities and special districts including Oversight 
Boards responsible for the winding up of Redevelopment Agency activities since forming her own law firm in 2009. 

 
  

42



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Legal services will be expensed to the City Attorney budget. A budget of $75,000 for legal services will be proposed 
for the Fiscal Year 2015/16 budget. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit ‘A’ 
B. Letter of Interest – Hilda Cantu Montoy 

 
 
  

43



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPOINTING HILDA CANTU MONTOY AS 
CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE CITY OF KERMAN AND ENTERING INTO AN LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 1, 2015, Mark Blum with the firm of Henry, Logoloso & Blum announced his retirement 
from practice effective July 1, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 15, 2015, the City Council interviewed the firm of Hilda Cantu Montoy and Lozano Smith 
and directed staff to negotiate a contract for legal services with Hilda Cantu Montoy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint Hilda Cantu Montoy as the City Attorney for the City of 
Kerman and enter into a legal services agreement attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’ to provide legal services effective 
July 1, 2015. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the City Council appoints Hilda Cantu Montoy as the City Attorney for the City of Kerman effective 
July 1, 2015. 

2. That the City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute the legal services agreement with Hilda Cantu 
Monty on behalf of the City of Kerman. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th 
day of May, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 APPROVED: 
 
 __________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill 
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
 
 
 
  

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
  

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

 
  

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

 
  

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

  

51



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 
 
  

52



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
 
  

53



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
 
  

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
 
  

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
 
  

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 16 
Legal Services Agreement - Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney 
  
 
 

57



    
 

 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill                Gary K. Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Rhonda Armstrong  Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS & RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks, Recreation and Community Services Director 
Subject: Resolution Appointing/Reappointing Members to Community Service and Recreation Commission 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council by motion adopt resolution appointing/reappointing Commissioners, Teixeira, Amaro and Garcia to the 
Community Services and Recreation Commission. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Annual appointment/reappointment of community member to the Community Services and Recreation Commission 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Community Services and Recreation Commission consist of no less than seven or more than nine adult voting 
members and two non-voting Kerman High School students. The commission has the responsibility as a fact-finding 
and advisory agency concerning parks, facilities and the recreational/social needs of all residents.  
 
The City received no new applications. The Recreation Commission reviewed three applications from incumbents. In 
accordance with the Kerman Community and Recreation Services Commission bylaws, the Commission at its 
regular meeting on April 22, 2015 voted to recommend to the City Council to fill three expired term by re-appointing 
Mike Texeria and Delores Amaro, and appointing new member Anthony Garcia. All are recommended for three-year 
terms which would end on December 31, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
Attachment: 
 
 A. Resolution 

 

58



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Planning Commission Appointments 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPOINTING/REAPPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE COMMUNITY SERVICE AND 

RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

 WHEREAS, the Community Service and Recreation Commission desires to fill three 
expired terms, 

 WHEREAS, the Community Service and Recreation Commission by a majority vote at its 
regularly scheduled meeting recommended the reappointment of Mike Teixeira and Delores Amaro 
and the appointment of new member Anthony Garcia to three (3) year terms ending December 31, 
2017,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KERMAN as follows:  

 Mike Teixeira and Delores Amaro are hereby re-appointed and new member Anthony Garcia 
is hereby appointed as members of the Kerman Community Services and Recreation Commission, 
each for a term of three (3) years ending December 31, 2017.  
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Kerman held on the 6th day of May 2015 and passed at said regular meeting by the 
following vote: 

 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 
           
          ____________________ 
    Stephen B. Hill 
ATTEST:  Mayor 
 
 
_____________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 

59



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS & RECREATION 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015  

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks and Recreation Department Director 
Subject: Resolution Affirming use of Sole Source Purchase for Kids Climbing Wall Using Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution affirming that sole source purchasing complies with local government 
procurement requirements for the purchase of Kids Climbing Wall using Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Council is requested to approve a sole source purchase of playground climbing wall materials from the exclusive 
distributor, Castohn, LLC, for the materials specified. The City intends to purchase the climbing wall material for 
Katey’s Kids Park using CDBG funds through a sole source process. The City of Kerman’s Purchasing Policy, 
under the Sole Source Purchases section allows such purchases. However, Fresno County Community 
Development Department has requested that the City adopt a resolution affirming that the sole source process 
satisfies all government requirements for the use of Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) funds 
administered through the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). By adopting the attached 
resolution, the City will meet Fresno County’s request in the expenditure of CDBG funds through the Sole Source 
Purchasing process. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  

From time to time, specific products or expertise is required that can only be obtained through the use of a single 
brand, supplier or vendor. The City of Kerman’s Purchasing Policy, under the Sole Source Purchases section, 
authorizes that under specific circumstances, commodities and services can be obtained from only one vendor and 
are exempt from competitive bidding. Sole source purchases may include proprietary items sold directly from the 
manufacturer, items that have only one distributor authorized to sell in this area or a certain product has proven to 
be acceptable. All sole source purchases shall be supported by written documentation. Final determination of 
whether or not an item is a valid sole source purchase will be made by the Purchasing Officer or designee. The 
Community Development Block Grant guidelines also allow for Sole Source purchasing where “The item is unique 
and available only from a single source”. The attached written documentation supports such action.  

60



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
Resolution – Sole Source Purchasing  

  
 
Katey’s Kids Park has a climbing wall designed into the nature-themed playground area. This climbing wall serves 
the dual purpose of retaining the hill and providing a fun activity for children. This in itself presents a number of 
challenges for the type of wall we can build. The climbing wall originally designed by the architect was a concrete 
wall with plastic handholds. While this type of wall functionally met the criteria, it was not the best application for a 
natural climbing wall. When our engineer received preliminary estimates to build the wall from local contractors, the 
cost was significantly higher than anticipated. Several other options were explored from building a natural stone 
wall, a block wall, and one made from gunite shotcrete. Each of these proved to be very expensive to build with 
prevailing wage labor. Through a park and recreation industries trade magazine, staff found the perfect natural 
themed climbing wall materials with the Rosetta Hardscapes Outcropping product. 
 
The Rosetta product looks fundamentally different than any other concrete landscape products on the market. By 
accurately replicating natural stone and mimicking perfectly sculpted concrete for the most modern applications, 
Rosetta has created a new standard in hardscape design. Furthermore, as an engineered product, Rosetta installs 
significantly faster, and lasts significantly longer than natural stone and on-site poured concrete eliminating the 
difficult decision between form and function. The product has a natural beautiful weathered stone texture. The 
Outcropping product units allow you to create grand, structural walls. Ease of installation comes from engineered, 
interlocking units suitable for our park application. Additionally, the cost of these materials is considerably less than 
other wall construction materials. Photos of the Rosetta product are included as Attachment ‘B’. The Local 
Conservation Corps reviewed the installation guide and has agreed to build the Outcropping climbing wall; again 
this should create a considerable cost saving to the City. 
 
Staff attempted to get similar Rosetta’s Outcropping hardscape products locally. After meeting and talking with 
Clovis Stone & Masonry, Rosenbalm Rockery, Pacific Supply, Home Depot and Lowes, staff found that none 
carried a hardscape product a similar to the Outcropping stone product. On the internet, I checked several other 
hardscape retaining wall products and none had a comparable product.  
 
Staff is not only confident that the Rosetta Hardscape Outcropping is the right product for the City, but that their 
pricing is fair and competitive. Staff is requesting Council’s approval for sole source purchase of playground 
climbing wall materials from the exclusive distributor Castohn, LLC, for the materials specified The Sole Source 
Vendor letter (Attachment ‘C’) verifies Castohn, LLC, is the sole source provider-manufacturer of Rosetta 
Outcropping products on the west coast. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The use of the Sole Source Purchase process will enable the City to expedite or streamline purchasing and save 
money. Castohn’s Quote is shown at Attachment ‘D’. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A. Resolution 
B. Photos 
C. Vendor Letter 
D. Quote 

61



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
Resolution – Sole Source Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘A’ 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN  
AFFIRMING USE OF SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE FOR PLAYGROUND CLIMBING MATERIALS FOR  

COMMUNITY BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the Fresno County Community Development Department has requested the City adopt a resolution 
affirming that the City allows for the use of Sole Source Purchasing and that Sole Source Purchasing has followed 
procurement practices through a Sole Purchase process that satisfies all government requirements of the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for use of Community Development Block Grant (CDGG) 
funded projects, and  

 
WHEREAS, Katey’s Park is scheduled to receive new playground area equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the use of Sole Source Purchasing is consistent with the City’s Purchasing Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Castohn, LLC, is the only available west coast source for supplying the Rosetta Hardscape 

Outcropping product; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City staff has evaluated this opportunity and determined that Sole Source Purchasing will 

benefit the City of Kerman and will be in the city’s best interests and that the use of the sole source process will 
benefit the public interest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman, California, that the foregoing 
recitals are true and correct, and therefore City can utilize Sole Source Process to make such purchases for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects so long as such process is otherwise in compliance with City 
and HUD procurement guidelines. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, City Staff is authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary 
or convenient to acquire the necessary materials for Katey’s Park from Castohn, LLC, and to give effect to this 
Resolution and the actions contemplated herein. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th 
day of May, 2015 and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
          _________________________  
   Steven B. Hill  
ATTEST:  Mayor 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes  
City Clerk 

62



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
Resolution – Sole Source Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘B’  

 

Rosetta Hardscapes Outcropping Product – Playground Photo Examples 
   
    
    

63



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
Resolution – Sole Source Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘C’ 

 

 
 
 
 
April 21, 2015 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Castohn, LLC is a sole source provider-manufacturer of Rosetta Outcropping products on the west coast.  
Currently Castohn markets, manufactures and sells Outcropping products in a direct transaction between the end 
customer and Castohn, LLC. 

 

Sincerely, 

Marc Holmes 
Sales Director 
Castohn, LLC 
Phone:  253.830.3366 
Cell: 253-355.0376 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6801 South Adams Street, Tacoma, WA 98409           Phone: 253-830-3366         Fax:  253-830-5863 

64



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
Resolution – Sole Source Purchasing  

  
Attachment ‘D’ 

 

 Item Code Item Description Approximate 
Quantity 

Unit Price Extended Price 

 Outcropping Block Pallet A  (3 Pallets) 54SF $23.00 $1.242.00 
 Outcropping Block Pallet B  (6 Pallets) 108SF $23.00 $2,484.00 
 Outcropping Block Pallet C  (3 Pallets) 54SF $23.00 $1,242.00 
 Wood Pallets 12 $15.00 $180.00 
 Shipping Freight (Current quote) 1  $2,400.00 
     
   Subtotal $7,548.00 
   Sales Tax $717.06 
 FOB Truck, Jobsite, Customer Unload    
   Total $8,265.06 

Physical location of plant (no mail): 6801 S. Adams St, Tacoma, Washington 98409 
  

TERMS:  
1. Normal working days are Monday thru Friday 8:30am to 4:00pm PST. Orders delivered outside these times may 

incur extra charges. 
2. If not accepted in writing within 45 days, pricing on this quote is subject to change. 
3. The quoted prices are valid and in effect until ______April 30, 2015_____.  
4. This quote does not include any state sales or use taxes. 
5. Customer shall pay interest on any amount past due to Castohn or related companies at the rate of 18% per 

annum. 
6. Quoted prices are for materials only FOB Tacoma plant. These prices do not include taxes, insurance, 

unloading, installation, engineering, or other items that are specific to the unique conditions of this job/project. 
7. All orders, as in above, are considered custom in nature. Upon signing this order, Castohn is directed to begin 

producing the above items. Once supplies are either ordered, or production begins, purchaser shall be liable for 
all incurred costs should there be a change of any kind to the quantity or character of this order. 

8. Since the above items are custom manufactured per order, returns are not allowed. In the unique case where 
returns are authorized, they shall be subject to a 15% restock charge. Shipping is to be paid by purchaser. 
Returns shall be for full pallet, re-sellable items only.  

9. Quantities for each item are estimates only. Item counts to be verified by the contractor. Castohn is not 
responsible for quantity estimates. Shortages or overages are the responsibility of the customer.  

 
 Accepted by:______________________  Name:____________________  Title:_______________  Date:____________ 
 

 (signature)  (print name) 
 Castohn rep:______________________  Name:____________________ Title:_______________ 

 (signature)  (print name) 
Additional comments: 

  
 

Quote By:   Marc Holmes 
                   253-830-3366 Fax 253-830-5863 Quote Date:     March 17, 2015 

To:   City of Kerman, CA Project Name and Address: 
 Katey’s Wall 
CONTACT: Philip Gallegos  
PHONE:   
FAX:   

Quote 

65



   

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary K. Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT:  PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Chris Kufis, Interim Building Official 
Subject: Public Hearing for Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
Council open public hearing to receive objections or protests from property owners, close the public hearing, and 
adopt by motion resolution ordering the abatement of weeds and rubbish.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On April 1, 2015, the City Council passed a resolution declaring weeds, rubbish and refuse a public nuisance and 
set May 6, 2015 as the date for an abatement hearing. The required posting and mailing of the notice to affected 
property owners was done on March 19, 2015 in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 8.8 of the Kerman 
Municipal Ordinance. The annual weed abatement program removes the nuisance created on various properties by 
weeds, rubbish and refuse. These nuisances create a potential fire hazard and a haven for rodents and other 
vectors. The abatement hearing is held annually in order to hear any objections or protests from property owners to 
the notice and order to abate weeds, rubbish and refuse on their property. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES   
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Code enforcement staff identified several properties throughout town where weeds, rubbish or refuse was observed. 
The list of properties was presented to the City Council on April 1, 2015, at which time the Council adopted a 
resolution declaring said weeds, rubbish and refuse a public nuisance. Notices were posted on the property and 
mailed to the property owners on March 19, 2015 informing them of the May 6, 2015 abatement hearing. 
 
The purpose of the abatement hearing is to provide property owners with an opportunity to object or protest the 
proposed removal of weeds, rubbish or refuse from their property. The City Council has the discretion to overrule 
any or all objections or to sustain objections if the property owner has voluntarily abated the weeds. 
 
Upon adoption of the resolution, all properties are given until May 31, 2015 to voluntarily abate weeds, rubbish 
and/or refuse at their own expense. Staff will re-inspect the properties beginning on June 2nd to determine 
compliance. If not voluntarily abated by this date, City staff will authorize a contractor to abate the properties. 

  

66



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The City of Kerman encourages property owners to voluntarily abate weeds and rubbish from their property. 
However, if not done so voluntarily by June 1st the city retains a private contractor to clean and abate the property of 
weeds and debris. The city subsequently records a lien against the property for the costs of abatement. The city 
budgeted $4,000 for weed abatement activities. It should be noted in 2014 the City only spent $3,200, the reduction 
due to property owners and staff being more proactive. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING   
 
A notice was posted on the properties subject to abatement and a copy of the notice was mailed to the owners of 
record in accordance with Section 8.04.040 and 8.08.050 of the Kerman Municipal Code. 
 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION   
 
To remove nuisance on vacant property caused by weeds, rubbish and refuse. 
 
Attachments: 
 
A. Resolution Ordering the Abatement of Weeds, Rubbish and Refuse 
 

  

67



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
 

Attachment A 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN OVERRULING OBJECTIONS  
AND ORDERING ABATEMENT OF WEEDS, RUBBISH AND REFUSE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 6, 2015, 

at 6:30 p.m. on said day, was moved by Councilmember _______________, seconded by Councilmember 
______________, and carried that the following resolution be adopted: 

WHEREAS, Kerman Municipal Code Sections 8.08.010 through 8.08.100 provide a means for the City 
Council to find and declare public nuisances and order abatement of weeds, rubbish and refuse; and  

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2015, the City Council adopted a resolution of intent to abate weeds, rubbish and 
refuse by declaring such weeds as a public nuisance and established May 6, 2015, as the date for the abatement 
hearing, during which all property owners having any objections to the proposed removal of such weeds, rubbish and 
refuse might be heard and given due consideration; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution and notice, the City Council conducted an abatement hearing with 
respect thereto, at which time all property owners having any objections to the proposed abatement or removal of 
such weeds were duly heard and considered. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Kerman, the following: 

1. The Council hereby finds and declares that public nuisances exist on each of the properties listed on 
Exhibit ‘A’, attached hereto, in the form of weeds, brush, grass and other dangers; creating a fire hazard. 

2. The Council hereby overruled any and all objections or protests to the proposed abatement of weeds, 
rubbish and established a deadline of May 31, 2015, for the abatement or removal of such nuisance. 

3. The Council hereby orders the Director of Planning & Development, or his representative, to abate such 
nuisance, or cause the same to be abated after May 31, 2015, by having the weeds, rubbish or refuse 
referred to destroyed or removed by cutting, discing, chemical spraying, or any other method which may 
hereafter be determined by the City Council. 

4. The Council also finds and declares that the weeds on each parcel of the properties listed herein are 
seasonal and recurrent nuisances and upon the second or subsequent occurrence of such nuisance 
shall be noticed pursuant to Section 8.08.100 of the Municipal Code. 

68



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
 

5. The Council hereby establishes June 17, 2015, as the date for acceptance of an itemized report on the 
cost of abatement and authorization to submit such costs to the County Treasurer for recordation as a 
property tax lien. 

Passed and adopted at a regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th day of May 2015, 
by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 

 APPROVED: 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill 
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 

  

69



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
2014 List of Properties 

 Address Cross Street Owner Parcel Number 
1 210 S. Madera Ave. Stanislaus Ave. Verinder Kaleka 023-100-24s 
2 210 S. Madera Ave.  Stanislaus Ave. Verinder Kaleka 023-100-25s 
3 15730 W. Kearney Blvd Park Ave. Hari Jacob 023-513-04s 
4 15718 W. Kearney Blvd. Park Ave. Wilcox Douglas 023-513-05s 
5 400 S. Del Norte Ave. Middleton Ave. Armando Flores-Acevedo 023-453-13s 
6 817 S. Del Norte Ave. C St. Pereira Trustee 023-482-05s 
7 15642 W.  C St. Del Norte Ave. Helen Moore 023-481-01s 
8 15609,15617,15625,15639 C St. Del Norte Ave. Pereira Trustee 023-482-01s-04s 
9 15255 W. B St. Second St. Bogdanov Trustee 023-207-01s 

10 15060 W. D St. Fourth St. Tony Martinez 023-174-07s 
11 581 S. Madera Ave F St. Dale Faust 023-144-06s 
12 15625  W. E St. Del Norte Ave Samuel Lucido 023-531-16s 
13 1402 S. Industrial Ave. Industrial Ave. Randolph Delrio 023-060-73s 
14 15260 W. Church Ave Industrial Ave. Golden Castle Dev. Co. 023-060-37s 
16 1401 S. Madera Ave. Church Ave. J Chavez 023-060-86s 
17 Bordeaux I Empty Lots California Ave. Greg Meister 020-320-64s-66s 
18 Bordeaux I Empty Lots California Ave. Greg Meister 020-320-75s-78s & 80s 
19 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. BHT II Kerman 67/West Coast 

Housing LLC 
020-331-01s-12s 

20 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave.  BHT II Kerman 67/West Coast 
Housing LLC 

020-332-01s-12s 

21 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. BHT II Kerman 67/West Coast 
Housing LLC 

020-333-01s-12s 

22 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. Baldwin Kerman 78 LLC 020-331-13s & 14s 
23 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. Kerman 78 LLC 020-332-13s & 14s 
24 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. Kerman 78 LLC 020-333-13s & 14s 
25 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. BHT II Kerman 67/West Coast 

Housing LLC 
020-334-40s 

26 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Ave. Kerman 78 LLC 020-334-41s 
27 Josephs Vineyard California Ave. FAI-Bordeaux IIIA LLC/Financial 

Advantage 
023-040-90s 

28 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-710-01s-19s & 25s-57s 
29 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-721-01s-09s 
30 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-722-01s-03s & 05s-06s 
31 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-723-01s-2s & 05-13s 
32 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-724-01s-06s 
33 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-725-01s-04s & 06s-23s 
34 Pacific Mt. Partner Empty Lots Gateway Ave. United Security Bank 023-726-08s-14s 
35 Whitesbridge Road Goldenrod Ave. East Kerman Development Inc. 023-220-34s 
36 Whitesbridge Road Goldenrod Ave. East Kerman Development Inc. 023-220-35s 
37 Kearney Blvd. 16th Street UCP Kerman LLC 023-350-26s 
38 Chardonay Ave. Stanislaus Ave. East Kerman Development Inc. 023-220-23s 
39 Whitesbridge Road Madera Avenue Wilson Kerman LLC 023-030-52 
40 Whitesbridge Road S. Kline Ave. Wilson Kerman LLC 023-030-53-58 
41 Whitesbridge Ave. Vineland Ave. Burdine Daniel & Tracie Trustee 023-030-07s 
42 Whitesbridge Ave. Vineland Ave. Burdine Daniel & Tracie Trustee 023-030-08s 
43 Whitesbridge Ave. Vineland Ave. Burdine Daniel & Tracie Trustee 023-030-45s 
44 Whitesbridge Ave. Vineland Ave. Burdine Daniel & Tracie Trustee 023-030-46s 

70



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
 
45 14890 W. Whitesbridge Ave. Madera Ave. King of Central Valley 025-130-73s 
46 1485 Industrial Way Church Ave. Steve Martinez 023-060-76s 
47 281 S. Siskiyou Ave Stanislaus Ave Leopold Lara Revable Living Trust 

Fernando Lara Trustee 
020-340-23s 

48 170 S. Madera Ave. Whitesbridge Road Jani Hardeep 023-030-11s 
49 Madera Avenue Commerce Way Ajit & Amarjit Sapraj 023-060-93s 
50 Commerce Way Madera Ave. Dolores Peelman Trustee 023-060-54s 
51 Commerce Way Madera Ave. Dolores Peelman Trustee 023-060-55s 
52 E Street Del Norte Ave. Anthony and Danelle Provencio 023-531-29s 
53 14612 W. Kearney Blvd. G Street Robert and Monterey Sims 023-131-32 
54 14542 W. Kearney Blvd. G Street David and Mary Karen Joe 023-131-33 
55 893 S. 8th St B St Sylvia C. Valdivia 023-213-07s 
56 14573 W. California Ave. Ninth Street Juan I Silva 023-330-03s 
57 Empty Lot on Madera & B Street B Street S&K Moran Family LP/Barcus 

Family LP 
023-204-09 

58 Empty lot behind Crossing shopping 
Center Madera Avenue 

Whitesbridge Campbell Edward E Trustee 025-130-95 

59 Bordeaux II Empty Lots California Avenue BHT II Kerman 67, LLC 020-334-37s-39s 
60 Kerman Neighborhood Shopping 

Center 
Whitesbridge Rd Wilson David TRS 023-030-19-21 

61 Sur Rts 70 by 80 ft.  Madera/Stanislaus Lester E. Jr. & Diane M. Taylor 023-100-07s 
62 14751 Commerce Way Commerce Way Oscar Topete/Kennison Farms, 023-072-01s 

 
63 Commerce Way Madera Ave Jose Alvarenga/Kennison Farms 023-072-02s & 03s 
64 732 S. Third Street Third Street Jose Rodriguez 023-173-08s 
65 1403 Industrial Way Industrial Way Vianney Realty, KS LLc 023-060-51s 
66 Empty lot Stanislaus/6th street Stanislaus/6th St KJE Properties, LLC 023-405-02s 
67 14280 Stanislaus Stanislaus Ave Autumn Ridge LP 023-220-24s 
68 Railroad ROW  California Union Pacific RR/Austin Fearnow 023-060-62,65,66 
69 Railroad ROW California Union Pacific RR/Austin Fearnow 023-070-80,82-84 
     

 

 
 

71



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 14452 W. Kearney Boulevard 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving Agreement for Utility Service for Manuel and Maria Hernandez at 
14452 W. Kearney Boulevard. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Manuel and Maria Hernandez own the property located at the northeast corner of Vineland Avenue and Kearney 
Boulevard. There is an existing single family residence on the property that is not connected to city sewer and water. 
The resident has a private well and septic tank. The owners have requested to connect the residence to city sewer 
and water mains and pay the connection charges over a 10-year period. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The existing well on the property is faltering. The property owner has requested connection to ensure that they can 
maintain a safe water supply to their residence. A similar agreement was entered into with the adjacent property 
owner. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
In order to maintain their potable water supply to their residence, the owners of the subject property have requested 
to connect to city utilities. The subject property is located within the city limits and the necessary infrastructure is 
available to provide water and sewer service. The owners will be required to pay the applicable development impact 
fees for connection to city utilities. The development impact fees were calculated using the length of developed 
frontage and one residential unit. The total fees are $7,053. The city has allowed other property owners whose 
property was developed prior to being annexed into the city to pay the fees with their monthly bills over a 10-year 
period at no interest. This alleviates the up-front fiscal impact to the property owner. The residence will be required 
to install a water meter as part of the connection. Any future development on the property will be subject to 
additional impact fees. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The water service will be metered and the owners will be required to pay monthly water and sewer charges based 
on current rates. The applicable development impact fees will be collected over a 10-year period. 
 

  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibits 
B. Vicinity Map 

 
 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR UTILITY SERVICE  

FOR MANUEL AND MARIA HERNANDEZ (14452 WEST KEARNEY BOULEVARD) 
 

WHEREAS, Manuel and Maria Hernandez are the owners of real property located at 14452 West Kearney Boulevard, 
in the City of Kerman; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property was annexed into the City of Kerman in 2007, and at the time of annexation the 
property contained a residence, water well and septic system; and 

WHEREAS, sewer and water mains currently exist across the frontage of the subject property in Kearney Boulevard 
and Vineland Avenue, which could provide utility service to the subject property; and  

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Hernandez residence to connect to 
the sewer and water system are $7,053; and 

WHEREAS, Manuel and Maria Hernandez have made application to the City of Kerman for water and sewer service; 
and  

WHEREAS, Section 13.08 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires payment of connection charges, and Section 
13.04.100 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires an Agreement for Utility Service between the property owner and the City 
before utility service can be provided.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
1. The Agreement for Utility Service for Manuel and Maria Hernandez as substantially shown in Exhibit 1 is 

hereby approved and the City Manager is authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th day of 
May, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
   _________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill  

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
  

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

EXHIBIT 1 
 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF:  
 
City of Kerman 
       
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL THIS DEED AND,  
UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN BELOW, MAIL TAX  
STATEMENT TO:    
 
City of Kerman 
Attn.:  City Clerk 
850 South Madera Avenue 
Kerman, CA 93630   

       NO RECORDING FEE GOV. CODE 27383 
      ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-------- 
              SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

 Address: 14452 W. Kearney Blvd. 
APN: 023-350-30S 

 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR UTILITY SERVICE 
MANUEL O. HERNANDEZ and MARIA R. HERNANDEZ 

 
This Agreement for Utility Service (the Agreement) is made this ________ day of _____________________, 
2015 between the CITY OF KERMAN, a municipal corporation (City), and MANUEL O. HERNANDEZ and 
MARIA R. HERNANDEZ, husband and wife, as joint tenants (Owner). 
 

Recitals 
 

A. Owner is the owner of that certain real property (Real Property) located at 14452 West Kearney 
Boulevard in the City of Kerman, California and more particularly described as 
 
All that portion of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 7, Township 14 South, Range 18 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, according to the 
Official United States Government Township Plat thereof. 
 

B. Owner’s Real Property was partially developed when it was annexed into the City, and the 
improvements to the Real Property included a residence, a water well and septic system. 

 
C. Owner desires to connect their existing residence to the sewer and water system of the City within 

120 days of the date of this Agreement and to receive service from these systems. 
  

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

Agreement 
 

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Owner agrees that he is obligated to pay Development Impact Fees to City in the amount of 

Seven Thousand and Fifty-three Dollars ($7,053) in order to receive sewer and water service from the City, as 
shown in attached Exhibit A. Owner agrees to pay these fees in 120 monthly installments of $58.78 each. 
Installments shall begin with the first monthly utility billing after Owner is connected to either the City sewer or 
water system and shall continue until the entire amount is paid. 

 
2. Owner agrees to obtain and pay for Plumbing Permits from the City for the connection of the 

residence on the Real Property to the City sewer and water system. If Owner chooses to maintain the existing 
water well, Owner agrees to use water produced by it for landscape irrigation purposes only, to disconnect the 
existing water pipeline from the well to the residence, and to install an approved backflow prevention device 
immediately downstream of his water meter and connection to the City water system. If after connection to the 
City water system, Owner ceases to use the existing well for irrigation purposes, Owner agrees to obtain and 
pay for a permit and abandon the existing well as required by law within 120 days of cessation of use of the 
water well. Owner also agrees to obtain and pay for a permit from the City and abandon the septic system 
within 120 days of connection to the City sewer system.  

 
3. The parties acknowledge that one result of the utility billing method of payment is to allow City to 

use the non-judicial remedy of discontinuing all utility services in the event of a default by Owner in the 
performance of its duties and obligations pursuant to the Agreement. 

 
4. In addition to any other relief that may be available to the parties in connection with this Agreement, 

the parties agree that a court or arbitrator may, in appropriate circumstances, order either party to specifically 
perform its obligations as set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 5. The rights and obligations of the parties shall not be assigned or transferred to others without the 
prior written consent of the other party. This agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
parties’ successors or assigns. The burdens and benefits of this Agreement shall run with the land identified in 
Exhibit A attached hereto. This Agreement shall be executed in recordable form. 
  
 6. All notices to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and either: 
 
 (a) Sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered three (3) 
business days after deposit, postage prepaid in the United States Mail, 
 (b) Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered one 
(1) business day after deposit with this courier, or 
 (c) By telecopy or similar means, if a copy of the notice is also sent by United States Certified Mail, in which 
case notice shall be deemed delivered on transmittal by telecopier or other similar means provided that a 
transmission report is generated by reflecting the accurate transmission of the notices, as follows: 
 
 TO OWNER:   Manuel & Maria Hernandez 
     14452 W. Kearney Boulevard 
     Kerman, CA 93630 
 
 

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

 TO CITY:   City Manager 
     CITY OF KERMAN 
     850 South Madera Avenue 
     Kerman, CA 93630 
 
 With Courtesy Notice to:  City Attorney 
     850 South Madera Avenue 
     Kerman, CA 93630 
 
 These addresses may be changed by written notice to the other party, provided that no notice of a change 
of address shall be effective until actual receipt by the parties of the notice. Copies of notices are for informational 
purposes only, and a failure to give or receive copies of any notice shall not be deemed a failure to give notice. 
 
 7. If either party commences an action against the other to enforce this Agreement, or because of the 
breach by either party of this Agreement, the prevailing party in this action shall be entitled to recover attorney fees 
and costs incurred in connection with the prosecution or defense of this action, including any appeal of the action, 
in addition to all other relief. Prevailing party within the meaning of this Section shall include, without limitation, a 
party who successfully brings an action against the other party for sums allegedly due or performance of 
covenants allegedly breached, or that party who obtains substantially the relief sought in the action. 
 
 8. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties as to the subject matter 
hereof. This Agreement shall not be construed to relieve Owner from properly maintaining improvements on 
Owner’s property as required by any existing site plan or conditional use permit, to excuse compliance with 
any law or regulation of general application, or to address any developmental requirements that may be 
applied to any future development of Owner’s property. Without limitation of the foregoing, Owner 
acknowledges that the Development Impact Fees paid as provided herein are for the existing residence only, 
and any additional residences or other uses or additional improvements will require the payment of additional 
Development Impact Fees as may be applicable to such additional residences, uses or improvements. 
 
 No promise, representation, warranty, or covenant not included in this Agreement has been or is relied 
on by either party. Each party has relied upon his own examination of this Agreement, the counsel of his own 
advisors, and the warranties, representations, and covenants in the Agreement itself. The failure or refusal of 
either party to read the Agreement or other documents, or to obtain legal or other advice relevant to this 
transaction constitutes a waiver of any objection, contention, or claim that might have been based on such 
reading, inspection, or advice. 
 
 9. Time is of the essence for each condition, term, and provision in this Agreement. 
 
 10. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each shall be deemed an original 
and all taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The execution of this Agreement is deemed 
to have occurred, and this Agreement shall be enforceable and effective only on the complete execution of this 
Agreement by the parties. 
 
 11. If any term or provision of this Agreement shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected. 
 
 12. A waiver or breach of a covenant or provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of 
any other covenant or provision in this Agreement and no waiver shall be valid unless in writing and executed by 

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

the waiving party. An extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall not be deemed an extension 
of the time for performance of any other obligation or act. 
 
 13. Headings at the beginning of each section and subsection are solely for the convenience of the 
parties and are not a part of and shall not be used to interpret this Agreement. The singular form shall include the 
plural and vice versa. This Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared by one of the parties, but 
rather as if both parties have prepared it. Unless otherwise indicated, all references to sections are to this 
Agreement. All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are attached to it and incorporated to it by this reference. 
 
 14. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with California law. This 
Agreement concerns real property located in Kerman, California and each party agrees that a court of competent 
jurisdiction for the judicial district including Kerman, California would be the most appropriate court for any litigation 
that might arise in connection with this Agreement. 
 
 15. Each party signing below certifies that he or she is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
thereby obligate the party on whose behalf such signature is made. The authority of each signer was, if 
necessary, granted by appropriate corporate action. 
 
 16. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing duly authorized and executed by 
both parties. It may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or understanding between the parties. 
This Agreement and any modification or amendment thereto shall only be effective if authorized by the City 
Council of the City of Kerman.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year first above written. 
 
 
“CITY” 
CITY OF KERMAN, a Municipal    Approved as to form only: 
Corporation  
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Luis Patlan, City Manager Mark A. Blum, City Attorney 
 
 
 
“OWNER” 
Manuel O. Hernandez and Maria R. Hernandez 
 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Manuel O. Hernandez     Maria R. Hernandez 
 
 

 
 

 

78



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

FEE QUANTITY RATE AMOUNT EXTENSION 
Water Front Footage (1) 120 L.F. $15.00 $1,800 $800 
Water Oversize 1 UN. 304.00 304 304 
Water Major Facilities 1 UN. 2,126.00 2,126 2,126 
Sewer Front Footage (1) 120 L.F. 16.00 1,920 920 
Sewer Oversize 1 UN. 554.00 554 554 
Sewer Major Facilities 1 UN. 2,349.00 2,349 2,349 
Total    $7,053 
 
Notes: 
(1) Credit of $2,000 for cost of installation of sewer and water services paid by Owner. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

79



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 9 
Utility Services Agreement - Hernandez 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Vicinity Map 

 

80



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution of intention to levy and collect the annual assessments for Landscape and 
Lighting District No. 1 and set the date for the required public hearing for June 17, 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Landscape and Lighting District maintains public landscaping in median islands and landscape strips along 
major streets. The revenue from the district also pays for street lighting costs for areas within the district. All new 
developments are annexed into the district and charged an annual assessment that is collected with property taxes. 
There are currently 12 sub-areas within the Landscape and Lighting District No. 1. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
This is the second of three actions by Council required by State law for the levy of the annual assessments. Council 
previously initiated proceedings for the annual levy of assessments at the April 15, 2015 council meeting. The City 
Engineer has prepared a preliminary report labeled Engineer’s Report of the City of Kerman Landscaping and 
Lighting District No. 1, dated May 2015, and filed the report with the City Clerk. The report includes descriptions of 
the improvements maintained, boundaries of the district and sub-areas, and proposed assessments per parcel. The 
final report will be submitted for approval at the time of the public hearing. The next, and final, action required by 
Council will be to conduct the required public hearing, receive any testimony, and confirm the annual assessments. 
The assessment roll is then submitted to the County Assessor for inclusion on the property owner’s tax bill.  No new 
annexations have taken place this past year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The annual assessments from Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 are used for maintenance of public 
landscaping and street lighting. The assessments for sub-areas 1 through 5 were established prior to the passage of 
Proposition 218 and therefore cannot be raised without a vote of the property owners. The assessments for sub-
areas 6 through 12 are adjusted annually by the change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI). The CPI increased 
1.6% in 2014. The estimated total assessments for this year are $212,906.  The exact amount of total assessments 
will be known once the City receives the property roll from the Fresno County Assessor’s Office. 

81



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
2015-2016 LMD Intent to Levy 
  
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
The required public hearing should be set for the June 17, 2015 Council Meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Map – Assessment Area Boundaries 

 
 
  

82



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
2015-2016 LMD Intent to Levy 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT THE ANNUAL 
ASSESSMENT FOR LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICT NO. 1 

FOR THE CITY OF KERMAN 
 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kerman, County of Fresno, California that: 
 
 1. It is the intention of said Council to order the levy and collection of an assessment under the Landscaping and 
Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code (beginning with Section 22500 of said Code and 
hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) for Landscaping & Lighting District No. 1 of the City of Kerman (herein “District”) for fiscal 
year 2015-2016.  
 
 2. Said District is generally described as Tract No. 3397, Tract No. 4165, Tract No. 4484, Tract No. 4529, Tract 
No. 4560, Tract No. 4676 (Ph.1), Tract No. 4775, Tract No. 4792, Tract No. 4811, Tract No. 4846, Tract No. 4853, Tract No. 
4910, Tract No. 4955, Tract No. 4987, Tract No. 5023, Tract No. 5028, Tract No. 5043, Tract No. 5132, Tract No. 5165, Tract 
No. 5191, Tract No. 5160, Tract No. 5329, Tract No. 5244, Tract No. 5222,  Tract No. 5138, Tract No. 5266, Tract No. 5348, 
Tract No. 5416, Tract No. 5750, Tract No. 5636, Tract No. 5488, Tract No. 5480, Tract No. 5515, Tract No. 5478, Tract No. 
5677, Tract No. 5805, Tract No. 5928, Tract No. 5975, Parcel Map No. 96-01, Parcel Map No. 98-04, Parcel Map No. 98-05, 
Site Plan Review No. 05-25, Parcel Map No. 07-01, Parcel Map No. 10-01, Parcel Map No. 10-02, and Parcel Map 09-02. 
Improvements to be maintained are generally described as street lights and public landscaping within the District. 
 
 3. The Engineer has prepared and filed with the Clerk of the City of Kerman a preliminary report labeled 
Engineer’s Report of the City of Kerman Landscaping and Lighting District No. 1, dated May 2015 to which reference is hereby 
made for a detailed description of the improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district, and any zones therein, and the 
proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcel of land within the District.  
 
 4. Assessments in the District are equal to the prior year assessments, first time assessments, or assessments 
increased by a cost of living factor. 
 
 5. The Kerman News, a newspaper published in Kerman, California and circulated in the City of Kerman is 
hereby designated as the newspaper in which this Resolution of Intention shall be published, and the Clerk of the City of 
Kerman is hereby directed to cause this Resolution of Intention to be published once.  Publication shall be completed not less 
than ten (10) days before the date set for hearing. 
 
 6. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 17th day of June 2015, at the hour of 6:30 p.m., in the regular meeting 
place of the Council of the City of Kerman, City Hall, Kerman California 93630, is hereby fixed as the time and place for a public 
hearing when and where all interested persons shall be heard on the question of the levy and collection of the proposed 

83



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
2015-2016 LMD Intent to Levy 
  
assessments. Written protests may be filed with the City Clerk at any time prior to the conclusion of the hearings. A written 
protest shall state all grounds of objection and shall contain a description sufficient to identify the property owned by the 
protesting person or persons. 

  
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th day of 
May, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 

  

84



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
2015-2016 LMD Intent to Levy 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

85



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: MAY 6, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council reviews the preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 and takes the following action: 

1. Select one of the three alternative General Fund Budgets for FY 2015/16 and direct staff accordingly; and 
 

2. Adopt resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2014/15 General Fund budget to add one full-time police 
officer and one (1) patrol vehicle. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Staff has prepared the preliminary budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16. The General Fund budget will be presented first 
since it is the primary budget that covers core services to the community. The budgets for the Enterprise Funds, 
Internal Service Funds, and Capital Improvement Program will be presented on May 20, 2015. The Proposed 
General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 reflects a structurally balanced budget with revenues slightly in 
excess of reserves. 
Staff has also prepared two alternative budgets for the Council’s consideration. Alternative A reflects the addition of 
two (2) full-time police officers and Alternative B reflects the addition of one (1) full-time police officer. Alternative A 
results in a projected first-year deficit of $313,618 and Alternative B results in a first-year deficit of $206,248. Staff 
prepared a 5-Year Financial Forecast for all three budgets in order to provide a long term perspective. 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The General Fund is the general operating budget for the City’s core services including City Council, City Manager, 
City Clerk, Police, Planning & Development, Public Works, and Parks, Recreation and Community Services. 
Revenues to cover these general operating expenditures come primarily from sales and property tax, which 
comprise 79% of all revenues to the General Fund. The balance is collected from franchise taxes, building permits, 
rents, and miscellaneous fees.  
 

86



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  
The largest investment of General Fund revenues goes to the Police Department (65%) followed by Parks, 
Recreation and Community Services (15%), Legislation & General Government (10%), Planning and Development 
(6%) and Public Works (3.4%). The commitment to law enforcement and recreation is reflected in the community’s 
low crime rates and high youth and adult participation in recreational programs and activities. The Proposed 
General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 continues to reinforce this commitment and Alternative Budgets A and B 
expand law enforcement with the addition of new police officers. All three budgets will be discussed separately 
below.4% annual increase to health insurance costs 
 
 

Proposed General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 
 
As reflected in Attachment ‘A’, the Proposed General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 shows the estimated 
year-end numbers for the current fiscal year as well as the budgeted numbers for next fiscal year. The City is 
expected to end the current fiscal year with a surplus of approximately $104,523. This is slightly more than the 
projected surplus of $53,476 included in the Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget. This indicates that the City has 
done a good job projecting revenues conservatively and managing expenditures throughout the fiscal year. With a 
projected surplus of $104,523 as of June 30, 2015, the City is expected to increase the General Fund Reserves 
from $2,616,040 to $2,720,563. Once again, the City expects to the end the fiscal year in a good financial position. 
 
(Note: Should the City Council amend the FY 2014/15 budget to add one (1) additional police officer, the added cost 
to end the fiscal year would be approximately $34,334. Assuming the Police Department fills this vacancy 
immediately, the budget is projected to end the fiscal year with a slightly lower surplus of $70,189). 
 
The Proposed General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 reflects revenues of $4,403,225 and expenditures of 
$4,403,234 with a slight deficit of $9. The Proposed Budget maintains existing staffing levels with increases to 
operations primarily in personnel costs due to the 1% COLA, higher health insurance premiums and employer 
contributions to CalPERS for the plans unfunded liability 
. 
General Fund revenues are projected to be $4,503,225 in FY 2015/16, slightly lower than the $4,540,949 budgeted 
in FY 2014/15. The decrease is primarily a result of lower than projected sales tax revenues due to the ending of the 
triple-flip in August of this year. According to our sales tax consultant, MuniServices the City should expect lower 
sales tax receipts as the state winds up the triple-flip in FY 2016/17 through FY 2017/18.  
 
As noted in the 5-Year Financial Forecast, revenues in excess over expenditures are projected to grow appreciably 
beginning in FY 2018/19. This would be the time to consider additional staffing. It is important to note that these 
projections assume that there is not another downturn in the economy and that there are no major changes in 
existing wages or benefits resulting from collective bargaining agreements. 
 
In summary, the Proposed General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 is structurally balanced without the need to transfer 
in revenues from the General Fund Reserves. 
 
Alternative Budgets 
 
At the April 15, 2015 City Council meeting, the City Council directed staff to present a budget amendment to include 
one additional full-time police officer in the current Fiscal Year 2014/15 budget and a second full-time police officer 
in the Fiscal Year 2015/16 Budget. Per the Council’s direction, staff presented two alternative budgets. Alternative 
Budget A includes two full-time police officers and Alternative Budget B includes one full-time police officer. Below is 
a brief discussion of each alternative. 
 

87



City Council Staff Report                             Page 3 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  
Alternative Budget A for FY 2015/16 
 
Alternative Budget A is enclosed as Attachment ‘B’. Based on the addition of two (2) new full-time officers, the 
budget is expected to result in a first year deficit of approximately $313,618. The annual cost of two police officers is 
$144,408, plus the one-time capital cost of $26,000 per vehicle, including the ongoing vehicle replacement and 
maintenance costs. 
 
The 5-Year Financial Projections for Alternative Budget A reflects annualized deficits in each of the next four fiscal 
years totaling $833,871. The General Fund Reserves of $2,616,040 would be reduced to approximately $1,834,016 
at the end of fiscal year 2020/21. The projections indicate that the General Fund would begin to show a surplus of 
revenues in excess of expenditures beginning in Fiscal Year 2020/2021. It is important to note that these are 
projections and do not include any changes due to another economic downturn, impact on revenues from the 
ongoing drought or changes to wages and benefits resulting from collective bargaining agreements. 
 
Alternative B General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 
 
Alternative Budget B is enclosed as Attachment ‘C’. Based on the addition of one (1) new full-time officer, the budget 
is expected to result in deficit of approximately $206,248. The annual cost of one police officers is $72,204, plus the 
one-time capital cost of $26,000 for one vehicle, including the ongoing vehicle replacement and maintenance costs. 
The 5-Year Financial Projections for Alternative Budget B reflect annualized deficits in each of the next four fiscal 
years totaling $491,548. The General Fund Reserves of $2,616,040 would be reduced to approximately $2,303,216 
at the end of fiscal year 2020/21. The projections indicate that the General Fund would begin to show a surplus of 
revenues in excess of expenditures beginning in Fiscal Year 2019/2020. It is important to note that these are 
projections and do not include any changes due to another economic downturn or changes to wages and benefits 
resulting from collective bargaining agreements. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 ‘A’ – Proposed General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 
 ‘B’ – Alternative A General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 
 ‘C’ – Alternative B General Fund Budget for FY 2015/16 
 ‘D’ – Resolution Amending FY 2014/15 General Fund Budget 
 

  

88



City Council Staff Report                             Page 4 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  
 

Proposed General Fund Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
 
 
 

  

89



City Council Staff Report                             Page 5 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
  

 2014/2015
Adopted vs 
Proposed Exp % of

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget $ Total GF
Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016 Change Revenue
LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT.

6001 City Council $21,676 $21,989 $30,040 $29,490 $26,965 ($3,075)
6003 City Attorney 51,242            59,986           55,000          55,000          75,000           $20,000
1002 General Administration 149,782          228,773         220,138        204,866        198,359         ($21,779)
5005 Administrative Services 75,796            98,038           112,378        112,722        117,013         $4,635
6004 Legislation 21,896            27,605           32,620          29,985          31,606           ($1,014)

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT. 320,392          436,390         450,176        432,063        448,943         ($1,233) 10.2%

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
1008 Planning 17,338            101,707         120,728        104,946        118,487         ($2,241)
1010 Engineering 7,610              40,276           25,000          25,000          25,000           $0
1042 Building 133,830          128,565         131,009        153,345        120,007         ($11,002)

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 158,778          270,549         276,737        283,291        263,494         ($13,243) 6.0%

RECREATION/SOCIAL SERVICES
2002 Recreation Administration 225,442          234,547         235,416        234,916        236,536         $1,120
2010 Building Maintenance 42,433            45,813           62,672          61,592          55,630           ($7,042)
2044 Senior Center Services 123,303          109,487         111,991        114,691        119,047         $7,056
2047 Aquatics Program 25,966            21,779           25,297          28,697          42,263           $16,966
2062 Planned Recreation 26,617            22,556           33,224          33,359          32,466           ($757)
2065 Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270            37,521           54,230          55,231          56,055           $1,825
2069 Community Teen Center 119,758          129,628         125,811        125,901        126,828         $1,017

  TOTAL REC/SOC SERVICES 604,788          601,332         648,641        654,387        668,826         $20,185 15.2%
               

POLICE OPERATIONS
3011 Police Operations 2,415,633       2,483,503      2,705,938     2,703,142     2,816,391      $110,453
3041 Animal Control 34,368            56,209           60,791          61,287          57,365           ($3,427)

  TOTAL POLICE OPERATIONS 2,450,001       2,539,711      2,766,729     2,764,429     2,873,756      $107,027 65.3%

PUBLIC WORKS
4010 Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,217         $23,741

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,217         $23,741 3.4%
                

  TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS           3,683,344       3,993,046      4,266,758     4,261,426     4,403,234      $136,476 100.0%
 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,028,260       4,159,527      4,320,234     4,365,949     4,403,225      $82,991

EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES $344,916 $166,480 $53,476 $104,523 ($9)

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL G/F REVENUE 8.56% 4.00% 1.24% 2.39% 0.00%

250,000         175,000        175,000        100,000         
EXCESS (DEFICIT) AFTER TRANSFER IN FROM S/A 416,480         228,476        279,523        99,991           

SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

TRANSFER IN FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY (S/A)

90



City Council Staff Report                             Page 6 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

2014-2015
Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget

Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

City Council 21,676       21,989       30,040       29,490       26,965       
City Attorney 51,242       59,986       55,000       55,000       75,000       
General Administration 149,782     228,773     220,138      204,866      198,359      
Administrative Services 75,796       98,038       112,378      112,722      117,013      
Legislation 21,896       27,605       32,620       29,985       31,606       
Planning 17,338       101,707     120,728      104,946      118,487      
Engineering 7,610         40,276       25,000       25,000       25,000       
Building 133,830     128,565     131,009      153,345      120,007      
Recreation Administration 225,442     234,547     235,416      234,916      236,536      
Building Maintenance 42,433       45,813       62,672       61,592       55,630       
Senior Center Services 123,303     109,487     111,991      114,691      119,047      
Aquatics Program 25,966       21,779       25,297       28,697       42,263       
Planned Recreation 26,617       22,556       33,224       33,359       32,466       
Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270       37,521       54,230       55,231       56,055       
Community Teen Center 119,758     129,628     125,811      125,901      126,828      
Police Operations 2,415,633  2,483,503  2,705,938   2,703,142   2,816,391   
Animal Control 34,368       56,209       60,791       61,287       57,365       
Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384     145,064     124,476      127,256      148,217      

Total Expenditures 3,683,344  3,993,046  4,266,758   4,261,426   4,403,234   

General Fund Expenditure Summary

 

 
 

 
 

2014-2015
Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget

Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

Sales Tax 1,434,922  1,603,731  1,800,000   1,726,390   1,794,000   
Property Tax 1,476,554  1,548,549  1,558,554   1,647,961   1,670,000   
Admin & Overhead Fees 312,796     312,796     312,796      312,796      312,796      
Building Fees 230,081     123,214     103,000      107,600      81,000       
Franchise Taxes 156,963     158,829     150,000      152,000      150,000      
Rents 120,919     126,879     125,172      120,079      135,433      
Licenses and Permits 85,039       78,652       82,250       75,693       75,250       
Fines and Penalties 71,047       62,920       65,000       44,500       44,500       
Interest and Miscellaneous Income 53,355       52,233       47,262       66,527       53,423       
Youth and Recreation Program Fees 33,791       39,608       45,000       39,000       54,123       
Reimbursements 35,309       27,669       14,000       58,452       16,000       
Other Fees for Services 17,483       24,447       17,200       14,950       16,700       

Total Recurring Revenues 4,028,260  4,159,527  4,320,234   4,365,949   4,403,225   

Transfer In - Successor Agency -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      
Total Non-Recurring Revenues -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      

Total General Fund Revenue 4,028,260  4,409,075  4,495,234   4,540,949   4,503,225   

General Fund Revenue Summary

91



City Council Staff Report                             Page 7 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed
FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

GF Revenues:

1 Sales Tax 1,794,000   1,856,790  1,921,778  1,989,040   2,058,656  2,130,709  

2 Property Tax & MVLF in Lieu 1,670,000   1,720,100  1,771,703  1,824,854   1,879,600  1,935,988  

Other Revenue 939,225      930,602     930,602    930,602     930,602    930,602     

Total Revenue 4,403,225   4,507,492  4,624,083 4,744,496   4,868,858 4,997,299  

% Change 2.37% 2.59% 2.60% 2.62% 2.64%

Proposed
GF Expenses: FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

3 Personnel 3,115,465   3,166,768  3,200,630  3,225,700   3,244,963  3,251,841  

4 Operations & Maintenance 1,287,770   1,304,031  1,336,715  1,360,608   1,384,506  1,408,403  

Total Expenses 4,403,234   4,470,799  4,537,345  4,586,308   4,629,469  4,660,244  

% Change 1.53% 1.49% 1.08% 0.94% 0.66%

Excess Revenue Over 
Expenditures

(9)              36,693       86,738      158,188     239,389    337,055     

GF Reserve Balance Estimate 2,616,031   2,652,724  2,739,461  2,897,649   3,137,038  3,474,093  
Beginning Balance $2,616,040
(Audited 6/30/14)

Notes:

1

2

3

4 Operations & Maintenance costs are estimated at a 2% annual increase

Personnel Costs include normal merit increases for eligible employees

Sales Tax Estimates Provided by Muni-Services for FY 2015/16 through FY 2019/20. Estimate for FY's 2020/21 
is based on a five-year average for FY's 2015/16 through FY 2019/20 of 3.47%
Property Tax and Motor Vehicle License Fees in Lieu of property taxes are based on historical data at 3% 
annually

City of Kerman
5-Year Financial Forecast-Scenario I

ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED

92



City Council Staff Report                             Page 8 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,125 11,946 15,000 13,000 15,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 1,234 1,263 1,940 1,940 1,849

TOTAL PERSONNEL 14,359 13,209 16,940 14,940 16,849

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Prof Services - Chamber Audio System Maintenance 0 0 0 0 500                    
521 02 00 General Supplies 646 966 1,000 1,700 1,000
552 01 00 Public Notice 789 1,369 2,000 700 1,000                 
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 31 3,500 5,550 1,000                 
555 06 00 Website Updates and Add Ons 1,153 1,140 0 0 0
556 00 00 Community & Public Relations 4,698 4,605 5,500 5,500 5,500                 
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 700 1,100 1,100 1,115                 

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 7,317 8,780 13,100 14,550 10,115

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,676 21,989 30,040 29,490 26,965

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (3,075)
Percentage of Change -10.2%

Budget Highlights:

CITY COUNCIL
100 6001

FY 2014/15 General Supplies Exceeded Budget for Purchase of Three Electronic Tablets for Council Members
FY 2014/15 Travel/Conferences Exceeded Budget due to Three Council Members Attending Annual League of CA Cities Conference
Overall budget reduction primarily due to less anticipated travel expenses in FY 2015/16

93



City Council Staff Report                             Page 9 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 51,242 59,986 55,000            55,000 75,000               

TOTAL 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 20,000

Percentage of Change 36.4%

Budget Highlights:
Increase in City Attorney Budget due to New Attorney at Higher Hourly Billing Rate 

100 6003
CITY ATTORNEY

94



City Council Staff Report                             Page 10 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,829 59,677 62,348 62,348 64,906
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,404
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,475 18,452 18,844 18,844 18,092

TOTAL PERSONNEL 18,304 78,130 81,192 81,192 84,402

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services-Sales Tax Consultant/Grants 15,662 19,224 14,000 3,000 4,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Successor Agency 0 2,880 1,500 500 0
510 13 00 Professional Services - EDC Fresno County 8,636 7,318 6,000 6,000 6,000
515 01 00 Utilities 12,723 11,899 13,000 15,000 13,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,000 906 1,500 1,200 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 312 244 800 550 800
521 07 00 Postage 1,200 1,600 1,600 150 300
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease 7,804 7,287 0 0 0
550 00 00 Insurance 62,132 73,809 79,020 75,297 70,697
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 6,846 7,517 6,500 7,800 6,500
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 798 0 0 0 0
552 02 00 Public Notice / Advertising 113 0 350 0 350
554 01 00 Training/Conferences/Meetings 939 371 1,000 500 1,000
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 6,265 6,342 6,500 6,500 6,500
555 05 00 Property Taxes 2,614 2,655 0 0 0
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 100 2,025 2,025 2,025 2,025
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,335 6,567 5,152 5,152 1,285

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 131,478 150,643 138,947 123,674 113,958

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,782 228,773 220,138 204,866 198,359

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (21,779)
Percentage of Change -9.9%

Budget Highlights:

Internal Service Fund - Three year contract for MS Office Suite product expired in FY 2014/15
Dues & Subscription - Dues for membership in League of Cities, COG and Chamber of Commerce
Professional Services - MuniServices/Web: Budget to cover sales tax consultant and monthly web hosting

100 1002
CITY MANAGER

Contract Services - Moving expenses for State Mandated Cost reimbursements from City Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual 
cost

95



City Council Staff Report                             Page 11 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 5,761 18,825 18,376 14,000 20,504
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 1,453 720 3,500 0
410 30 00 Overtime 0 28 410 250 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 443
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 2,728 7,292 7,757 7,757 7,768

TOTAL PERSONNEL 8,489 27,598 27,263 25,507 28,716

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Professional Fees 0 4,000 4,000 8,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Audit 13,800 13,800 13,800 14,300 13,800
510 14 00 Professional Services-Finance Acct Software Maint 1,257 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,648 250 1,500 1,500 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 0 250 850 250
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,122 1,050 2,000 1,050
540 00 00 Lease Expense (PFA Bond) 49,911 50,305 50,307 50,307 49,753
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease (Copier/Postage/Mailer) 0 8,500 8,500 8,500
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 354 242 500 500 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 338 320 300 350 300
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 508 508 244

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 67,308 70,440 85,115 87,215 88,297

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 75,796 98,038 112,378 112,722 117,013
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 4,635

Percentage of Change 4.1%

Budget Highlights:

Capital Outlay for security shade at Finance customer service window

Professional Services: CSMFO & GFOA Budget recognition fees. Moving expenses for State Manadated Cost reimbursements from City 
Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual cost. Mandatory CalPERS report for GASB 68 reporting for audit in FY 2015/16.

100 5005
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

96



City Council Staff Report                             Page 12 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 2,392             13,886 14,501            14,501 15,988
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 346
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 718                4,791 4,192             4,192 4,257

TOTAL PERSONNEL 3,110 18,676 18,693 18,693 20,591

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 14,370 8,267 8,700 7,300 8,700
510 02 00 Elections 3,142 0 3,400 2,700 0
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 668 348 350 350 350
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 311 8 500 0 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 295 305 350 315 350
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 627 627 1,115

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 18,786 8,928 13,927 11,292 11,015

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,896 27,605 32,620 29,985 31,606

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (1,014)
Percentage of Change -3.1%

Budget Highlights:
Contract Services: Code Publishing and ECS (Laserfiche and New Novus Agenda)
Overall Decrease in budget due to Non-Election Year

CITY CLERK
100 6004

97



City Council Staff Report                             Page 13 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 5,672 65,726 66,173 66,173 68,437
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 1,925 2,243 2,500 2,500 0
410 30 00 Overtime 0 0 0 4,000 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,480
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 3,593 24,982 24,998 24,938 24,903

TOTAL PERSONNEL 11,190 92,952 93,671 97,611 94,821

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - LAFCo 0 3,253 3,500 2,203 2,500
510 02 00 Contract Services - Sphere of Influence 0 0 15,000 0 15,000
510 10 00 Professional Services 508 0 1,500 0 1,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,688 1,415 1,500 1,000 1,500
521 07 00 Postage 0 299 300 150 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 181 381 200 225 200
552 01 00 Public Notice 457 300 550 450 550
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 200 55 150 50 150
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 3,115 181 1,057 1,057 866

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,149 5,884 23,757 5,135 22,566

CAPITAL
600 03 99 Capital Outlay - New Accounting Software System 0 1,100 3,300 2,200 1,100
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 1,772 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 2,872 3,300 2,200 1,100

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 17,338 101,707 120,728 104,946 118,487

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (2,241)
Percentage of Change -1.9%

Budget Highlights:

PLANNING

Planning budget for FY 15/16 reflects a 12% increase due to addition of part-time wages for succession planning after two year position 
vacancy.

100 1008

98



City Council Staff Report                             Page 14 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 0
Percentage of Change 0.0%

Budget Highlights:
Professional Services - Yamabe & Horn: General engineering services for non-capital projects.

100 1010
ENGINEERING

99



City Council Staff Report                             Page 15 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 61,236 72,189 70,538 70,538 65,003
410 30 00 Overtime 470 799 800 1,000 500
410 35 00 Stand By 292 396 414 400 101
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,406
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 29,105 31,193 24,805 24,805 20,827

TOTAL PERSONNEL 91,103 104,576 96,557 96,743 87,837

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - Weed Abatement 8,209 4,267 5,600 2,500 5,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Plan Check 20,612 7,930 15,000 40,000 15,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 3,212 700 750 750 750
521 06 00 Uniforms 344 49 75 75 75
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,082 1,400 400 750
540 02 00 Equipment Rent 0 1,232 1,200 2,500 1,200
551 01 00 Communication - Telephone 976 1,135 950 1,000 950
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 662 528 650 600 600
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 12 124 400 100 150
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 125 1,412 150 400 150
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 8,574 5,303 7,977 7,977 7,545

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 42,727 23,762 34,152 56,302 32,170

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 133,830 128,565 131,009 153,345 120,007

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (11,002)
Percentage of Change -8.4%

Budget Highlights:
Professional Services-Plan Check: City Collects Plan Check Fees and Records as Revenue. City Remits Fees to Professional Plan Check 
Firm as an expense less 25% Administrative Fee as Net Revenue. See General Fund Revenue Building Plan Check Fees 

100 1042

Overall reduction in budget mostly due to less hours classified for staff needed to fill in for Building Inspector

BUILDING

100



City Council Staff Report                             Page 16 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 106,912 108,036 114,472 114,472 116,404
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 8,552 12,503 12,000 12,000 12,700
410 30 00 Overtime 111 0 500 0 500
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liablility 0 0 0 0 2,518
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 53,426 49,439 53,056 53,056 51,681

TOTAL PERSONNEL 169,000 169,978 180,028 179,528 183,803

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 1,200 1,200 0
515 01 00 Utilities 21,525 30,869 27,000 27,000 27,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 721 638 600 600 600
521 02 00 General Supplies 803 1,424 1,200 1,100 1,200
521 06 00 Uniforms 203 380 380 380 380
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 3,265 3,008 3,300 3,300 3,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 272 481 300 350 300
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 333 284 350 350 300
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 189 198 800 900 800
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 0 190 800 750 800
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments 1,867 1,867 0 0 0
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 27,265 25,231 18,958 18,958 18,153

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 56,442 64,570 54,888 54,888 52,733

600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 225,442 234,547 235,416 234,916 236,536

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,120
Percentage of Change 0.5%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

100 2002

Slight budget increase in part time salaries due to minimum wage increase January 2016 and slight increase in conferences and meetings for 
staff professional development.

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

101



City Council Staff Report                             Page 17 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 77                  9,880             9,880 10,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 0 12 1,482             1,462 1,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 89 11,362 11,342 11,480

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 6,025 8,212 26,700 26,500 26,500
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 3,000 2,500 2,500
521 03 00 Janitorial Supplies 18,629 18,234 7,000 7,000 7,000
521 04 00 Building Maintenance Supplies 7,555 7,645 8,000 8,000 8,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 150 150

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 32,516 35,531 45,010 44,150 44,150

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0
600 03 05 Capital Improv - Grandstand Lighting/Skate Ramp Repair 0 0 2,000             2,000                 0
600 03 00 Capital Improv - Police Department Building 0 5,547 0 0 0
600 03 06 Capital Improv - Senior Center Stair Tread Repair 0 0 2,500 2,300 0
600 03 07 Capital Improv - Kerckhoff Park Elec/Skate Park 0 0 1,800 1,800 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 10,194 6,300 6,100 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 42,433 45,813 62,672 61,592 55,630
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (7,042)

Percentage of Change -11.2%

Budget Highlights:

100 2010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16
Decrease in Budget due to no capital improvements planned

BUILDING MAINTENANCE

102



City Council Staff Report                             Page 18 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 78,655            60,341            60,248            60,248               61,718               
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 2,518                 
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 30,982            21,001            20,466            20,466               20,334               

TOTAL PERSONNEL 109,637 81,342 80,714 80,714 84,570

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 6,941 8,600 8,000 8,500 8,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 0 749 600 900 600
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 124 1,025 850 800 800
557 73 00 City Match to Senior Nutrition Grant (73) 0 12,032 12,890 14,640 14,593
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,436 2,694 2,500 2,700 2,500
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,166 3,045 6,437 6,437 7,985

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,667 28,145 31,277 33,977 34,478

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 123,303 109,487 111,991 114,691 119,047

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 7,056
Percentage of Change 6.3%

Budget Highlights:

100 2044
SENIOR CENTER SERVICES

Slight Budget increase due to increased City match due to decline in meal donations

CAPITAL

103



City Council Staff Report                             Page 19 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,366             4,117             6,272             6,272                 6,785                 
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,787            13,071            13,800            15,600               16,500               
410 20 01 KUSD Part-Time Aquatic Staffing 0 0 0 1,600 2,400                 
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 147                    
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,636             3,530             4,298             4,298                 6,883                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 24,789 20,719 24,370 27,770 32,715

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 02 00 Special Supplies 1,176 1,060 800 800 800
521 03 00 Pool Supplies and Chlorine 0 0 0 0 8,623
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 127 127 125

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 1,176 1,060 927 927 9,548

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equip. 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 25,966 21,779 25,297 28,697 42,263

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 16,966
Percentage of Change 67.1%

Budget Highlights:

KUSD is utilizing City Aquatic part time staffing for their summer program and will reimburse the City for the expenses. (See revenue)
KUSD is supplying pool supplies and chlorine from dissolution of trust funds. (See revenue)

100 2047
AQUATICS PROGRAM

CAPITAL

Increase in part-time salary budget due to State of California minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

104



City Council Staff Report                             Page 20 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 10,611 6,862 10,454 10,454 11,308
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 4,047 4,135 7,300 7,125 7,300
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 245
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 5,917 4,513 5,593 5,593 5,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,575 15,510 23,347 23,172 24,333

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 1,280 945 2,940 750 1,200
515 01 00 Utilities 2,142 2,611 2,500 3,000 2,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 186 2 200 200 200
521 02 00 Program Supplies 2,417 3,464 4,000 6,000 4,000
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 17 25 25 25 25
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 212 212 209

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,042 7,046 9,877 10,187 8,134

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 26,617 22,556 33,224 33,359 32,466

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (757)

Percentage of Change -2.3%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

100 2062

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

PLANNED RECREATION

105



City Council Staff Report                             Page 21 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,415            9,625             14,636            14,636               15,831
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,511 16,671 21,000 22,000 22,000
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 342
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 9,083 6,554 8,908 8,908 8,299

TOTAL PERSONNEL 36,009 32,850 44,543 45,544 46,473

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 01 00 Office Supplies 377 48 0 0 0
521 02 00 Special Supplies 4,825 4,533 9,300 9,300 9,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 58 91 90 90 90
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 297 297 292

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 5,261 4,671 9,687 9,687 9,582

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 41,270 37,521 54,230 55,231 56,055

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,825
Percentage of Change 3.4%

Budget Highlights:
Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

CAPITAL

100 2065
YOUTH AND TEEN SERVICES

106



City Council Staff Report                             Page 22 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 42,358 46,333 46,080 46,080 47,474
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 12,706 12,230 15,925 15,500 16,500
410 30 00 Overtime 61 0 250 315 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,027
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 23,766 23,446 23,190 23,190 24,026

TOTAL PERSONNEL 78,890 82,009 85,445 85,085 89,027

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contracted Services (Maintenance) 3,555 3,016 3,600 3,600 3,600
515 01 00 Utilities 23,145 29,122 26,000 26,000 26,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 219 483 300 500 300
521 02 00 Special Supplies 5,059 10,306 4,500 4,500 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,098 2,493 2,300 2,600 2,300
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 317 284 350 300 300
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,926 0 816 816 801

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 39,319 45,704 37,866 38,316 37,801

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 119,758 129,628 125,811 125,901 126,828

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,017
Percentage of Change 0.8%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

100 2069

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

COMMUNITY TEEN CENTER

107



City Council Staff Report                             Page 23 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 1,106,069 1,149,089 1,229,587 1,229,587 1,308,212
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 55,186 73,049 94,000 94,000 94,000
410 30 00 Overtime 50,987 41,935 50,000 45,000 50,000
410 35 00 Court Standby 2,199 1,682 2,500 2,500 2,500
410 36 00 FTO 1,009 1,122 1,000 3,500 5,200
410 38 00 Uniform Allowance 22,197 21,974 22,100 22,100 22,100
410 40 00 Holiday Pay 38,642 41,612 42,769 47,000 50,279
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 29,820
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 638,458 631,505 644,231 644,231 625,202

TOTAL PERSONNEL 1,914,747 1,961,967 2,086,188 2,087,918 2,187,313

510 11 00 Prof. Services - Emp. Hiring 10,341 3,022 4,000 10,000 4,000
510 12 00 Prof. Services - Lab Criminal 5,596 6,374 6,000 6,000 6,000
510 13 00 Prof. Services - Lab Employees 1,465 915 1,400 1,000 1,400
510 15 00 Assault/Medical Examinations 6,100 3,823 3,000 3,000 3,000
510 28 00 Dispatch 182,640 223,212 227,611 214,185 227,611
510 29 00 RMS-CAD 1,952 1,992 2,200 2,200 2,200
510 30 00 Booking Fees 824 2,112 1,000 1,200 1,000
510 31 00 Parking Citations 3,165 3,225 3,600 3,600 3,600
510 32 00 Live Scan Fingerprints 3,023 4,090 4,000 4,000 4,000
515 01 00 Utilities 17,286 17,201 16,000 18,000 16,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 7,175 3,821 4,200 4,200 4,200
521 02 00 General Supplies 3,700 5,338 6,840 6,840 6,840
521 07 00 Postage 0 2,208 2,200 2,200 2,200
521 10 00 Uniform Supplies 3,772 796 4,000 4,000 4,000
521 12 00 Bullet Resistant Vests 2,727 0 1,500 1,500 1,500
521 35 00 Firearms Purchase 0 1,454 1,200 1,200 1,200
530 01 00 Equipment Maintenance - Repair 3,733 6,743 2,500 2,500 2,500
540 02 00 Equipment Rental 4,615 5,008 4,200 4,200 4,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 3,479 3,699 3,500 3,500 3,500
551 02 00 Communications - Cell Phone 2,316 2,110 2,600 2,600 2,600
551 05 00 Live Scan Line 8,047 7,555 8,000 8,100 8,000
551 06 00 MDT Monthly Access 2,713 3,420 3,600 3,600 3,600
552 02 00 Public Notice 0 0 500 0 500
554 01 00 Travel - Meetings 13,029 6,195 6,000 7,500 6,000
554 05 00 Training Supplies 2,077 2,757 3,150 3,150 3,150
555 02 00 Professional Dues and Codes 650 878 1,550 1,550 1,550

Forensic Software Annual Upgrade 0 0 0 0 0
Explorer Program 0 0 0 0 1,000

565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 192,299 203,588 295,399 295,399 303,727

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 485,887 521,536 619,750 615,224 629,078

600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Donated Equip. Installation PD Fleet 14,999 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 14,999 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 2,415,633 2,483,503 2,705,938 2,703,142 2,816,391

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 110,453
Percentage of Change 4.1%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

POLICE
100 3011

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

108



City Council Staff Report                             Page 24 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,063 26,705 27,849 27,849 23,977
410 30 00 Overtime 305 28 0 500 1,000
410 35 00 Stand By 240 0 0 0 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 519
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 13,853 12,302 11,762 11,762 9,912

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,461 39,035 39,611 40,111 35,408

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 5,603 10,460 8,000 8,000 8,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 47 12 300 300 300
521 02 00 General Supplies 2,764 2,459 3,000 3,000 3,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 34 151 155 350 155
521 07 00 Postage 149 210 150 150 150
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 256 244 300 300 300
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 309 0 300 100 2,000
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,745 3,639 8,676 8,676 8,052

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,907 17,174 20,881 20,876 21,957

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 300 300 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 300 300 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 34,368 56,209 60,791 61,287 57,365

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (3,427)
Percentage of Change -5.6%

Budget Highlights:
Overall budget increase is due to the increase cost for animal disposal 

100 3041
ANIMAL CONTROL

109



City Council Staff Report                             Page 25 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 54,872 53,323 42,752 42,752 53,663
410 30 00 Overtime 2,735 2,921 3,000 3,000 3,000
410 35 00 Stand By 1,817 1,915 915 1,200 1,050
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,161
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 28,824 27,360 21,937 21,937 28,254

TOTAL PERSONNEL 88,247 85,519 68,604 68,889 87,128

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 4,805 4,830 5,000 6,000 5,000
515 02 00 Utilities - Old Town "LME" 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 207 560 400 400 400
521 05 00 Park Supplies 13,318 16,937 16,000 17,500 17,500
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 300 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 720 934 750 750 750
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 331 345 425 425 400
554 01 00 Training / Meetings 0 59 250 250 250
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (Fresno Irrig. District) 0 0 1,875 1,867 1,875
555 05 00 Property Taxes 0 0 2,655 2,668 2,675
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 16,477 14,739 13,153 13,153 16,885

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 51,219 54,898 55,872 58,367 61,089

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,384 145,064 124,476 127,256 148,217

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 23,741
Percentage of Change 19.1%

Budget Highlights:

PARKS LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

Increase in Park Supplies for New Sprinkler Time Clocks

100 4010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16

110



City Council Staff Report                             Page 26 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
Alternative A 

General Fund Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111



City Council Staff Report                             Page 27 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2014/2015
Adopted vs 
Proposed % of

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget $ Total
Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016 Change Exp's
LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT.

6001 City Council $21,676 $21,989 $30,040 $29,490 $27,165 ($2,875)
6003 City Attorney 51,242            59,986           55,000          55,000          75,000           $20,000
1002 General Administration 149,782          228,773         220,138        204,866        202,641         ($17,497)
5005 Financial Administration 75,796            98,038           112,378        112,722        122,698         $10,320
6004 Legislation 21,896            27,605           32,620          29,985          32,052           ($568)

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT. 320,392          436,390         450,176        432,063        459,555         $9,379 9.7%

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
1008 Planning 17,338            101,707         120,728        104,946        184,268         $63,540
1010 Engineering 7,610              40,276           25,000          25,000          25,000           $0
1042 Building 133,830          128,565         131,009        153,345        121,589         ($9,420)

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 158,778          270,549         276,737        283,291        330,857         $54,120 7.0%

RECREATION/SOCIAL SERVICES
2002 Recreation Administration 225,442          234,547         235,416        234,916        238,154         $2,737
2010 Building Maintenance 42,433            45,813           62,672          61,592          56,130           ($6,542)
2044 Senior Center Services 123,303          109,487         111,991        114,691        119,713         $7,722
2047 Aquatics Program 25,966            21,779           25,297          28,697          42,261           $16,964
2062 Planned Recreation 26,617            22,556           33,224          33,359          33,463           $239
2065 Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270            37,521           54,230          55,231          56,051           $1,821
2069 Community Teen Center 119,758          129,628         125,811        125,901        127,314         $1,504

  TOTAL REC/SOC SERVICES 604,788          601,332         648,641        654,387        673,086         $24,445 14.3%
               

POLICE OPERATIONS
3011 Police Operations 2,415,633       2,483,503      2,705,938     2,704,873     3,045,791      $339,854
3041 Animal Control 34,368            56,209           60,791          61,287          59,353           ($1,439)

  TOTAL POLICE OPERATIONS 2,450,001       2,539,711      2,766,729     2,766,160     3,105,144      $338,415 65.8%

PUBLIC WORKS
4010 Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,202         $23,726

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,202         $23,726 3.1%
                

  TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS           3,683,344       3,993,046      4,266,758     4,263,156     4,716,844      $450,086 100.0%
 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,028,260       4,159,527      4,320,234     4,365,949     4,403,225      $82,991

EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES $344,916 $166,480 $53,476 $102,792 ($313,618)

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL G/F REVENUE 8.56% 4.00% 1.24% 2.35% -7.12%

250,000         175,000        175,000        100,000         
EXCESS (DEFICIT) AFTER TRANSFER IN FROM S/A 416,480         228,476        277,792        (213,618)        

SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

TRANSFER IN FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY (S/A)

112



City Council Staff Report                             Page 28 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 

 

General Fund Revenue Summary
2014-2015

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

Sales Tax 1,434,922  1,603,731  1,800,000   1,726,390   1,794,000   
Property Tax 1,476,554  1,548,549  1,558,554   1,647,961   1,670,000   
Admin & Overhead Fees 312,796     312,796     312,796      312,796      312,796      
Building Fees 230,081     123,214     103,000      107,600      81,000       
Franchise Taxes 156,963     158,829     150,000      152,000      150,000      
Rents 120,919     126,879     125,172      120,079      135,433      
Licenses and Permits 85,039       78,652       82,250       75,693       75,250       
Fines and Penalties 71,047       62,920       65,000       44,500       44,500       
Interest and Miscellaneous Income 53,355       52,233       47,262       66,527       53,423       
Youth and Recreation Program Fees 33,791       39,608       45,000       39,000       54,123       
Reimbursements 35,309       27,669       14,000       58,452       16,000       
Other Fees for Services 17,483       24,447       17,200       14,950       16,700       

Total Recurring Revenues 4,028,260  4,159,527  4,320,234   4,365,949   4,403,225   

Transfer In - Successor Agency -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      
Total Non-Recurring Revenues -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      

Total General Fund Revenue 4,028,260  4,409,075  4,495,234   4,540,949   4,503,225   

General Fund Expenditure Summary
2014-2015

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

City Council 21,676       21,989       30,040       29,490       27,165       
City Attorney 51,242       59,986       55,000       55,000       75,000       
General Administration 149,782     228,773     220,138      204,866      202,641      
Financial Administration 75,796       98,038       112,378      112,722      122,698      
Legislation 21,896       27,605       32,620       29,985       32,052       
Planning 17,338       101,707     120,728      104,946      184,268      
Engineering 7,610         40,276       25,000       25,000       25,000       
Building 133,830     128,565     131,009      153,345      121,589      
Recreation Administration 225,442     234,547     235,416      234,916      238,154      
Building Maintenance 42,433       45,813       62,672       61,592       56,130       
Senior Center Services 123,303     109,487     111,991      114,691      119,713      
Aquatics Program 25,966       21,779       25,297       28,697       42,261       
Planned Recreation 26,617       22,556       33,224       33,359       33,463       
Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270       37,521       54,230       55,231       56,051       
Community Teen Center 119,758     129,628     125,811      125,901      127,314      
Police Operations 2,415,633  2,483,503  2,705,938   2,704,873   3,045,791   
Animal Control 34,368       56,209       60,791       61,287       59,353       
Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384     145,064     124,476      127,256      148,202      

Total Expenditures 3,683,344  3,993,046  4,266,758   4,263,156   4,716,844   

113



City Council Staff Report                             Page 29 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed
FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

GF Revenues:

1 Sales Tax 1,794,000    1,856,790    1,921,778    1,989,040    2,058,656    2,130,709    

2 Property Tax & MVLF in Lieu 1,670,000    1,720,100    1,771,703    1,824,854    1,879,600    1,935,988    

Other Revenue 939,225      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      

Total Revenue 4,403,225    4,507,492    4,624,083    4,744,496    4,868,858    4,997,299    

% Change 2.37% 2.59% 2.60% 2.62% 2.64%

Proposed
GF Expenses: FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

3 Personnel 3,274,046    3,326,224    3,366,202    3,397,702    3,423,705    3,437,416    

4 Operations & Maintenance 1,442,798   1,405,213    1,407,191    1,456,618    1,482,327    1,508,036    

Total Expenses 4,716,844    4,731,437    4,773,393    4,854,320    4,906,032    4,945,452    

% Change 0.31% 0.89% 1.70% 1.07% 0.80%

Excess Revenue Over 
Expenditures

(313,618)     (223,945)     (149,310)     (109,824)     (37,174)       51,847        

GF Reserve Balance Estimate 2,302,422    2,078,477    1,929,167    1,819,343    1,782,169    1,834,016    
Beginning Balance $2,616,040
(Audited 6/30/14)

Notes:

1

2

3

4
Operations & Maintenance costs are estimated at a 2% annual increase. Fiscal year 2015/16 includes department 
capital items.

Personnel Costs include normal merit increases for eligible employees

Sales Tax Estimates Provided by Muni-Services for FY 2015/16 through FY 2019/20. Estimate for FY's 2020/21 is 
based on a five-year average for FY's 2015/16 through FY 2019/20 of 3.47%

Property Tax and Motor Vehicle License Fees in Lieu of property taxes are based on historical data at 3% annually

City of Kerman
5-Year Financial Forecast-Scenario II

ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED

114



City Council Staff Report                             Page 30 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,125 11,946 15,000 13,000 15,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 1,234 1,263 1,940 1,940 1,849

TOTAL PERSONNEL 14,359 13,209 16,940 14,940 16,849

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Prof Services - Chamber Audio System Maintenance 0 0 0 0 500                    
521 02 00 General Supplies 646 966 1,000 1,700 1,200
552 01 00 Public Notice 789 1,369 2,000 700 1,000                 
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 31 3,500 5,550 1,000                 
555 06 00 Website Updates and Add Ons 1,153 1,140 0 0 0
556 00 00 Community & Public Relations 4,698 4,605 5,500 5,500 5,500                 
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 700 1,100 1,100 1,115                 

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 7,317 8,780 13,100 14,550 10,315

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,676 21,989 30,040 29,490 27,165

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (2,875)
Percentage of Change -9.6%

Budget Highlights:

CITY COUNCIL
100 6001

FY 2014/15 General Supplies Exceeded Budget for Purchase of Three Electronic Tablets for Council Members
FY 2014/15 Travel/Conferences Exceeded Budget due to Three Council Members Attending Annual League of CA Cities Conference
Overall budget reduction primarily due to less anticipated travel expenses in FY 2015/16

115



City Council Staff Report                             Page 31 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 51,242 59,986 55,000            55,000 75,000               

TOTAL 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 20,000

Percentage of Change 36.4%

Budget Highlights:

CITY ATTORNEY
100 6003

Increase in City Attorney Budget due to New Attorney at Higher Hourly Billing Rate 

116



City Council Staff Report                             Page 32 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,829 59,677 62,348 62,348 64,906
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,386
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,475 18,452 18,844 18,844 18,092

TOTAL PERSONNEL 18,304 78,130 81,192 81,192 84,384

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services-Sales Tax Consultant/Grants 15,662 19,224 14,000 3,000 5,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Successor Agency 0 2,880 1,500 500 0
510 13 00 Professional Services - EDC Fresno County 8,636 7,318 6,000 6,000 6,000
515 01 00 Utilities 12,723 11,899 13,000 15,000 15,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,000 906 1,500 1,200 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 312 244 800 550 800
521 07 00 Postage 1,200 1,600 1,600 150 300
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease 7,804 7,287 0 0 0
550 00 00 Insurance 62,132 73,809 79,020 75,297 70,697
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 6,846 7,517 6,500 7,800 7,800
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 798 0 0 0 0
552 02 00 Public Notice / Advertising 113 0 350 0 350
554 01 00 Training/Conferences/Meetings 939 371 1,000 500 1,000
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 6,265 6,342 6,500 6,500 6,500
555 05 00 Property Taxes 2,614 2,655 0 0 0
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 100 2,025 2,025 2,025 2,025
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,335 6,567 5,152 5,152 1,285

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 131,478 150,643 138,947 123,674 118,258

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,782 228,773 220,138 204,866 202,641

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (17,497)
Percentage of Change -7.9%

Budget Highlights:

Internal Service Fund - Three year contract for MS Office Suite product expired in FY 2014/15

CITY MANAGER

Contract Services - Moving expenses for State Mandated Cost reimbursements from City Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual 
cost

100 1002

Dues & Subscription - Dues for membership in League of Cities, COG and Chamber of Commerce
Professional Services - MuniServices/Web: Budget to cover sales tax consultant and monthly web hosting

117



City Council Staff Report                             Page 33 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 5,761 18,825 18,376 14,000 21,500
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 1,453 720 3,500 0
410 30 00 Overtime 0 28 410 250 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 459
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 2,728 7,292 7,757 7,757 8,442

TOTAL PERSONNEL 8,489 27,598 27,263 25,507 30,401

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Professional Fees 0 4,000 4,000 10,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Audit 13,800 13,800 13,800 14,300 14,300
510 14 00 Professional Services-Finance Acct Software Maint 1,257 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,648 250 1,500 1,500 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 0 250 850 250
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,122 1,050 2,000 2,000
540 00 00 Lease Expense (PFA Bond) 49,911 50,305 50,307 50,307 49,753
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease (Copier/Postage/Mailer) 0 8,500 8,500 8,500
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 354 242 500 500 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 338 320 300 350 350
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 508 508 244

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 67,308 70,440 85,115 87,215 91,797

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 75,796 98,038 112,378 112,722 122,698
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 10,320

Percentage of Change 9.2%

Budget Highlights:

Capital Outlay for security shade at Finance customer service window

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Professional Services: CSMFO & GFOA Budget recognition fees. Moving expenses for State Manadated Cost reimbursements from City 
Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual cost. Mandatory CalPERS report for GASB 68 reporting for audit in FY 2015/16.

100 5005

118



City Council Staff Report                             Page 34 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 2,392             13,886 14,501            14,501 15,988
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 341
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 718                4,791 4,192             4,192 4,257

TOTAL PERSONNEL 3,110 18,676 18,693 18,693 20,586

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 14,370 8,267 8,700 7,300 9,100
510 02 00 Elections 3,142 0 3,400 2,700 0
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 668 348 350 350 400
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 311 8 500 0 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 295 305 350 315 350
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 627 627 1,115

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 18,786 8,928 13,927 11,292 11,465

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,896 27,605 32,620 29,985 32,052

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (568)
Percentage of Change -1.7%

Budget Highlights:

CITY CLERK
100 6004

Contract Services: Code Publishing and ECS (Laserfiche and New Novus Agenda)
Overall Decrease in budget due to Non-Election Year

119



City Council Staff Report                             Page 35 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 5,672 65,726 66,173 66,173 68,437
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 1,925 2,243 2,500 2,500 15,000
410 30 00 Overtime 0 0 0 4,000 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,461
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 3,593 24,982 24,998 24,938 27,153

TOTAL PERSONNEL 11,190 92,952 93,671 97,611 112,052

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - LAFCo 0 3,253 3,500 2,203 2,500
510 02 00 Contract Services - Sphere of Influence 0 0 15,000 0 15,000
510 10 00 Professional Services 508 0 1,500 0 50,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,688 1,415 1,500 1,000 1,500
521 07 00 Postage 0 299 300 150 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 181 381 200 225 250
552 01 00 Public Notice 457 300 550 450 550
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 200 55 150 50 150
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 3,115 181 1,057 1,057 866

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,149 5,884 23,757 5,135 71,116

CAPITAL
600 03 99 Capital Outlay - New Accounting Software System 0 1,100 3,300 2,200 1,100
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 1,772 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 2,872 3,300 2,200 1,100

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 17,338 101,707 120,728 104,946 184,268

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 63,540
Percentage of Change 52.6%

Budget Highlights:

PLANNING
100 1008

Planning budget for FY 15/16 reflects a 52.6% increase due to addition of part-time wages for succession planning after two year position 
vacancy and projected need for Contract Planner assistance needed for upcoming commercial developments.

120



City Council Staff Report                             Page 36 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 0
Percentage of Change 0.0%

Budget Highlights:

ENGINEERING

Professional Services - Yamabe & Horn: General engineering services for non-capital projects.

100 1010

121



City Council Staff Report                             Page 37 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 61,236 72,189 70,538 70,538 65,003
410 30 00 Overtime 470 799 800 1,000 500
410 35 00 Stand By 292 396 414 400 101
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,388
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 29,105 31,193 24,805 24,805 20,827

TOTAL PERSONNEL 91,103 104,576 96,557 96,743 87,819

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - Weed Abatement 8,209 4,267 5,600 2,500 5,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Plan Check 20,612 7,930 15,000 40,000 15,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 3,212 700 750 750 750
521 06 00 Uniforms 344 49 75 75 75
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,082 1,400 400 750
540 02 00 Equipment Rent 0 1,232 1,200 2,500 2,500
551 01 00 Communication - Telephone 976 1,135 950 1,000 1,000
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 662 528 650 600 600
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 12 124 400 100 150
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 125 1,412 150 400 400
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 8,574 5,303 7,977 7,977 7,545

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 42,727 23,762 34,152 56,302 33,770

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 133,830 128,565 131,009 153,345 121,589

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (9,420)
Percentage of Change -7.2%

Budget Highlights:

BUILDING

Overall reduction in budget mostly due to less hours classified for staff needed to fill in for Building Inspector

Professional Services-Plan Check: City Collects Plan Check Fees and Records as Revenue. City Remits Fees to Professional Plan Check 
Firm as an expense less 25% Administrative Fee as Net Revenue. See General Fund Revenue Building Plan Check Fees 

100 1042

122



City Council Staff Report                             Page 38 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 106,912 108,036 114,472 114,472 116,404
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 8,552 12,503 12,000 12,000 12,700
410 30 00 Overtime 111 0 500 0 500
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liablility 0 0 0 0 2,485
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 53,426 49,439 53,056 53,056 51,681

TOTAL PERSONNEL 169,000 169,978 180,028 179,528 183,770

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 1,200 1,200 1,200
515 01 00 Utilities 21,525 30,869 27,000 27,000 27,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 721 638 600 600 600
521 02 00 General Supplies 803 1,424 1,200 1,100 1,200
521 06 00 Uniforms 203 380 380 380 380
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 3,265 3,008 3,300 3,300 3,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 272 481 300 350 350
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 333 284 350 350 300
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 189 198 800 900 1,200
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 0 190 800 750 800
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments 1,867 1,867 0 0 0
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 27,265 25,231 18,958 18,958 18,153

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 56,442 64,570 54,888 54,888 54,383

600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 225,442 234,547 235,416 234,916 238,154

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 2,737
Percentage of Change 1.2%

Budget Highlights:

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL

100 2002

Slight budget increase in part time salaries due to minimum wage increase January 2016 and slight increase in conferences and meetings for 
staff professional development.

123



City Council Staff Report                             Page 39 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 77                  9,880             9,880 10,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 0 12 1,482             1,462 1,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 89 11,362 11,342 11,480

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 6,025 8,212 26,700 26,500 26,500
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 3,000 2,500 2,500
521 03 00 Janitorial Supplies 18,629 18,234 7,000 7,000 7,500
521 04 00 Building Maintenance Supplies 7,555 7,645 8,000 8,000 8,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 150 150

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 32,516 35,531 45,010 44,150 44,650

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0
600 03 05 Capital Improv - Grandstand Lighting/Skate Ramp Repair 0 0 2,000             2,000                 0
600 03 00 Capital Improv - Police Department Building 0 5,547 0 0 0
600 03 06 Capital Improv - Senior Center Stair Tread Repair 0 0 2,500 2,300 0
600 03 07 Capital Improv - Kerckhoff Park Elec/Skate Park 0 0 1,800 1,800 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 10,194 6,300 6,100 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 42,433 45,813 62,672 61,592 56,130
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (6,542)

Percentage of Change -10.4%

Budget Highlights:

BUILDING MAINTENANCE
100 2010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16
Decrease in Budget due to no capital improvements planned

124



City Council Staff Report                             Page 40 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 78,655            60,341            60,248            60,248               61,718               
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 2,485                 
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 30,982            21,001            20,466            20,466               20,334               

TOTAL PERSONNEL 109,637 81,342 80,714 80,714 84,537

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 6,941 8,600 8,000 8,500 8,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies 0 749 600 900 600
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 124 1,025 850 800 800
557 73 00 City Match to Senior Nutrition Grant (73) 0 12,032 12,890 14,640 14,591
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,436 2,694 2,500 2,700 2,700
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,166 3,045 6,437 6,437 7,985

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,667 28,145 31,277 33,977 35,176

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 123,303 109,487 111,991 114,691 119,713

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 7,722
Percentage of Change 6.9%

Budget Highlights:

SENIOR CENTER SERVICES

CAPITAL

100 2044

Slight Budget increase due to increased City match due to decline in meal donations

125



City Council Staff Report                             Page 41 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,366             4,117             6,272             6,272                 6,785                 
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,787            13,071            13,800            15,600               16,500               
410 20 01 KUSD Part-Time Aquatic Staffing 0 0 0 1,600 2,400                 
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 145                    
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,636             3,530             4,298             4,298                 6,883                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 24,789 20,719 24,370 27,770 32,713

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 02 00 Special Supplies 1,176 1,060 800 800 800
521 03 00 Pool Supplies and Chlorine 0 0 0 0 8,623
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 127 127 125

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 1,176 1,060 927 927 9,548

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equip. 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 25,966 21,779 25,297 28,697 42,261

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 16,964
Percentage of Change 67.1%

Budget Highlights:

KUSD is utilizing City Aquatic part time staffing for their summer program and will reimburse the City for the expenses. (See revenue)
KUSD is supplying pool supplies and chlorine from dissolution of trust funds. (See revenue)

AQUATICS PROGRAM
100 2047

CAPITAL

Increase in part-time salary budget due to State of California minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

126



City Council Staff Report                             Page 42 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 10,611 6,862 10,454 10,454 11,308
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 4,047 4,135 7,300 7,125 7,300
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 241
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 5,917 4,513 5,593 5,593 5,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,575 15,510 23,347 23,172 24,329

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 1,280 945 2,940 750 1,200
515 01 00 Utilities 2,142 2,611 2,500 3,000 2,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 186 2 200 200 200
521 02 00 Program Supplies 2,417 3,464 4,000 6,000 5,000
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 17 25 25 25 25
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 212 212 209

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,042 7,046 9,877 10,187 9,134

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 26,617 22,556 33,224 33,359 33,463

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 239

Percentage of Change 0.7%

Budget Highlights:

PLANNED RECREATION
100 2062

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

CAPITAL

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

127



City Council Staff Report                             Page 43 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,415            9,625             14,636            14,636               15,831
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,511 16,671 21,000 22,000 22,000
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 338
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 9,083 6,554 8,908 8,908 8,299

TOTAL PERSONNEL 36,009 32,850 44,543 45,544 46,469

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 01 00 Office Supplies 377 48 0 0 0
521 02 00 Special Supplies 4,825 4,533 9,300 9,300 9,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 58 91 90 90 90
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 297 297 292

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 5,261 4,671 9,687 9,687 9,582

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 41,270 37,521 54,230 55,231 56,051

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,821
Percentage of Change 3.4%

Budget Highlights:

YOUTH AND TEEN SERVICES

CAPITAL

100 2065

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

128



City Council Staff Report                             Page 44 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 42,358 46,333 46,080 46,080 47,474
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 12,706 12,230 15,925 15,500 16,500
410 30 00 Overtime 61 0 250 315 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,014
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 23,766 23,446 23,190 23,190 24,026

TOTAL PERSONNEL 78,890 82,009 85,445 85,085 89,014

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contracted Services (Maintenance) 3,555 3,016 3,600 3,600 3,600
515 01 00 Utilities 23,145 29,122 26,000 26,000 26,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 219 483 300 500 500
521 02 00 Special Supplies 5,059 10,306 4,500 4,500 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,098 2,493 2,300 2,600 2,600
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 317 284 350 300 300
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,926 0 816 816 801

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 39,319 45,704 37,866 38,316 38,301

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 119,758 129,628 125,811 125,901 127,314

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,504
Percentage of Change 1.2%

Budget Highlights:

COMMUNITY TEEN CENTER
100 2069

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

CAPITAL

129



City Council Staff Report                             Page 45 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 1,106,069 1,149,089 1,229,587 1,229,587 1,396,932
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 55,186 73,049 94,000 94,000 94,000
410 30 00 Overtime 50,987 41,935 50,000 45,000 50,000
410 35 00 Court Standby 2,199 1,682 2,500 2,500 2,500
410 36 00 FTO 1,009 1,122 1,000 3,500 5,200
410 38 00 Uniform Allowance 22,197 21,974 22,100 22,100 24,300
410 40 00 Holiday Pay 38,642 41,612 42,769 47,000 54,027
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 29,820
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 638,458 631,505 644,231 644,231 670,349

TOTAL PERSONNEL 1,914,747 1,961,967 2,086,188 2,087,918 2,327,128

510 11 00 Prof. Services - Emp. Hiring 10,341 3,022 4,000 10,000 6,000
510 12 00 Prof. Services - Lab Criminal 5,596 6,374 6,000 6,000 6,000
510 13 00 Prof. Services - Lab Employees 1,465 915 1,400 1,000 1,400
510 15 00 Assault/Medical Examinations 6,100 3,823 3,000 3,000 4,000
510 28 00 Dispatch 182,640 223,212 227,611 214,185 227,611
510 29 00 RMS-CAD 1,952 1,992 2,200 2,200 2,200
510 30 00 Booking Fees 824 2,112 1,000 1,200 1,200
510 31 00 Parking Citations 3,165 3,225 3,600 3,600 3,600
510 32 00 Live Scan Fingerprints 3,023 4,090 4,000 4,000 4,000
515 01 00 Utilities 17,286 17,201 16,000 18,000 18,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 7,175 3,821 4,200 4,200 4,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 3,700 5,338 6,840 6,840 7,000
521 07 00 Postage 0 2,208 2,200 2,200 2,200
521 10 00 Uniform Supplies 3,772 796 4,000 4,000 4,000
521 12 00 Bullet Resistant Vests 2,727 0 1,500 1,500 1,625
521 35 00 Firearms Purchase 0 1,454 1,200 1,200 1,200
530 01 00 Equipment Maintenance - Repair 3,733 6,743 2,500 2,500 3,500
540 02 00 Equipment Rental 4,615 5,008 4,200 4,200 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 3,479 3,699 3,500 3,500 3,800
551 02 00 Communications - Cell Phone 2,316 2,110 2,600 2,600 2,600
551 05 00 Live Scan Line 8,047 7,555 8,000 8,100 8,100
551 06 00 MDT Monthly Access 2,713 3,420 3,600 3,600 3,600
552 02 00 Public Notice 0 0 500 0 500
554 01 00 Travel - Meetings 13,029 6,195 6,000 7,500 7,000
554 05 00 Training Supplies 2,077 2,757 3,150 3,150 3,150
555 02 00 Professional Dues and Codes 650 878 1,550 1,550 1,550

Forensic Software Annual Upgrade 0 0 0 0 3,100
Explorer Program 0 0 0 0 1,500

565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 192,299 203,588 295,399 295,399 303,727
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds - Two Additional Vehicles O/M 0 0 0 1,731 22,500

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 485,887 521,536 619,750 616,955 663,663

600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Donated Equip. Installation PD Fleet 14,999 0 0 0 3,000
600 04 00 Capital Outlay-Vehicle Add Off. 1 FY14/15 1 FY15/16 0 0 0 0 52,000

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 14,999 0 0 0 55,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 2,415,633 2,483,503 2,705,938 2,704,873 3,045,791

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 339,854
Percentage of Change 12.6%

Budget Highlights:

POLICE
100 3011

Police Dept. Received Radar Equipment From City of Clovis that Required Professional Installation of $150 Per Vehicle for Twenty (20) 
Vehicles for a total of $3,000. Two additional vehicles for proposed Police Office staff increase.

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

CAPITAL

130



City Council Staff Report                             Page 46 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,063 26,705 27,849 27,849 23,977
410 30 00 Overtime 305 28 0 500 1,000
410 35 00 Stand By 240 0 0 0 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 512
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 13,853 12,302 11,762 11,762 9,912

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,461 39,035 39,611 40,111 35,401

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 5,603 10,460 8,000 8,000 9,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies 47 12 300 300 300
521 02 00 General Supplies 2,764 2,459 3,000 3,000 3,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 34 151 155 350 350
521 07 00 Postage 149 210 150 150 150
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 256 244 300 300 300
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 309 0 300 100 2,000
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,745 3,639 8,676 8,676 8,052

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,907 17,174 20,881 20,876 23,652

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 300 300 300

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 300 300 300

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 34,368 56,209 60,791 61,287 59,353

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (1,439)
Percentage of Change -2.4%

Budget Highlights:

ANIMAL CONTROL

Overall budget decrease due to resignation of full time Animal Control Officer reduction in salary costs.

100 3041

131



City Council Staff Report                             Page 47 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 54,872 53,323 42,752 42,752 53,663
410 30 00 Overtime 2,735 2,921 3,000 3,000 3,000
410 35 00 Stand By 1,817 1,915 915 1,200 1,050
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,146
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 28,824 27,360 21,937 21,937 28,254

TOTAL PERSONNEL 88,247 85,519 68,604 68,889 87,113

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 4,805 4,830 5,000 6,000 5,000
515 02 00 Utilities - Old Town "LME" 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 207 560 400 400 400
521 05 00 Park Supplies 13,318 16,937 16,000 17,500 17,500
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 300 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 720 934 750 750 750
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 331 345 425 425 400
554 01 00 Training / Meetings 0 59 250 250 250
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (Fresno Irrig. District) 0 0 1,875 1,867 1,875
555 05 00 Property Taxes 0 0 2,655 2,668 2,675
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 16,477 14,739 13,153 13,153 16,885

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 51,219 54,898 55,872 58,367 61,089

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,384 145,064 124,476 127,256 148,202

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 23,726
Percentage of Change 19.1%

Budget Highlights:

PARKS LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

Budget Increase in Personnel due to Reclassification of Employee from Building Department to Parks
Increase in Park Supplies for New Sprinkler Time Clocks

100 4010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16

132



City Council Staff Report                             Page 48 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
Alternative B 

General Fund Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133



City Council Staff Report                             Page 49 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2014/2015
Adopted vs 
Proposed Exp % of

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget $ Total GF
Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016 Change Revenue
LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT.

6001 City Council $21,676 $21,989 $30,040 $29,490 $27,165 ($2,875)
6003 City Attorney 51,242            59,986           55,000          55,000          75,000           $20,000
1002 General Administration 149,782          228,773         220,138        204,866        202,641         ($17,497)
5005 Administrative Services 75,796            98,038           112,378        112,722        122,698         $10,320
6004 Legislation 21,896            27,605           32,620          29,985          32,052           ($568)

TOTAL LEGISLATIVE & GEN. GOVT. 320,392          436,390         450,176        432,063        459,555         $9,379 10.4%

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
1008 Planning 17,338            101,707         120,728        104,946        184,268         $63,540
1010 Engineering 7,610              40,276           25,000          25,000          25,000           $0
1042 Building 133,830          128,565         131,009        153,345        121,589         ($9,420)

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 158,778          270,549         276,737        283,291        330,857         $54,120 7.5%

RECREATION/SOCIAL SERVICES
2002 Recreation Administration 225,442          234,547         235,416        234,916        238,154         $2,737
2010 Building Maintenance 42,433            45,813           62,672          61,592          56,130           ($6,542)
2044 Senior Center Services 123,303          109,487         111,991        114,691        119,713         $7,722
2047 Aquatics Program 25,966            21,779           25,297          28,697          42,261           $16,964
2062 Planned Recreation 26,617            22,556           33,224          33,359          33,463           $239
2065 Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270            37,521           54,230          55,231          56,051           $1,821
2069 Community Teen Center 119,758          129,628         125,811        125,901        127,314         $1,504

  TOTAL REC/SOC SERVICES 604,788          601,332         648,641        654,387        673,086         $24,445 15.3%
               

POLICE OPERATIONS
3011 Police Operations 2,415,633       2,483,503      2,705,938     2,704,873     2,938,421      $232,484
3041 Animal Control 34,368            56,209           60,791          61,287          59,353           ($1,439)

  TOTAL POLICE OPERATIONS 2,450,001       2,539,711      2,766,729     2,766,160     2,997,774      $231,045 68.1%

PUBLIC WORKS
4010 Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,202         $23,726

  TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 149,384          145,064         124,476        127,256        148,202         $23,726 3.4%
                

  TOTAL GENERAL FUND OPERATIONS           3,683,344       3,993,046      4,266,758     4,263,156     4,609,474      $342,715 104.7%
 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,028,260       4,159,527      4,320,234     4,365,949     4,403,225      $82,991

EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES $344,916 $166,480 $53,476 $102,792 ($206,248)

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL G/F REVENUE 8.56% 4.00% 1.24% 2.35% -4.68%

250,000         175,000        175,000        100,000         
EXCESS (DEFICIT) AFTER TRANSFER IN FROM S/A 416,480         228,476        277,792        (106,248)        

SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

TRANSFER IN FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY (S/A)

134



City Council Staff Report                             Page 50 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

General Fund Expenditure Summary
2014-2015

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

City Council 21,676       21,989       30,040       29,490       27,165       
City Attorney 51,242       59,986       55,000       55,000       75,000       
General Administration 149,782     228,773     220,138      204,866      202,641      
Administrative Services 75,796       98,038       112,378      112,722      122,698      
Legislation 21,896       27,605       32,620       29,985       32,052       
Planning 17,338       101,707     120,728      104,946      184,268      
Engineering 7,610         40,276       25,000       25,000       25,000       
Building 133,830     128,565     131,009      153,345      121,589      
Recreation Administration 225,442     234,547     235,416      234,916      238,154      
Building Maintenance 42,433       45,813       62,672       61,592       56,130       
Senior Center Services 123,303     109,487     111,991      114,691      119,713      
Aquatics Program 25,966       21,779       25,297       28,697       42,261       
Planned Recreation 26,617       22,556       33,224       33,359       33,463       
Youth and Teen Serivces 41,270       37,521       54,230       55,231       56,051       
Community Teen Center 119,758     129,628     125,811      125,901      127,314      
Police Operations 2,415,633  2,483,503  2,705,938   2,704,873   2,938,421   
Animal Control 34,368       56,209       60,791       61,287       59,353       
Parks Landscape Maintenance 149,384     145,064     124,476      127,256      148,202      

Total Expenditures 3,683,344  3,993,046  4,266,758   4,263,156   4,609,474   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Fund Revenue Summary
2014-2015

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year-End 2015-2016

Sales Tax 1,434,922  1,603,731  1,800,000   1,726,390   1,794,000   
Property Tax 1,476,554  1,548,549  1,558,554   1,647,961   1,670,000   
Admin & Overhead Fees 312,796     312,796     312,796      312,796      312,796      
Building Fees 230,081     123,214     103,000      107,600      81,000       
Franchise Taxes 156,963     158,829     150,000      152,000      150,000      
Rents 120,919     126,879     125,172      120,079      135,433      
Licenses and Permits 85,039       78,652       82,250       75,693       75,250       
Fines and Penalties 71,047       62,920       65,000       44,500       44,500       
Interest and Miscellaneous Income 53,355       52,233       47,262       66,527       53,423       
Youth and Recreation Program Fees 33,791       39,608       45,000       39,000       54,123       
Reimbursements 35,309       27,669       14,000       58,452       16,000       
Other Fees for Services 17,483       24,447       17,200       14,950       16,700       

Total Recurring Revenues 4,028,260  4,159,527  4,320,234   4,365,949   4,403,225   

Transfer In - Successor Agency -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      
Total Non-Recurring Revenues -            249,548     175,000      175,000      100,000      

Total General Fund Revenue 4,028,260  4,409,075  4,495,234   4,540,949   4,503,225   

135



City Council Staff Report                             Page 51 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed
FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

GF Revenues:

1 Sales Tax 1,794,000    1,856,790    1,921,778    1,989,040    2,058,656    2,130,709    

2 Property Tax & MVLF in Lieu 1,670,000    1,720,100    1,771,703    1,824,854    1,879,600    1,935,988    

Other Revenue 939,225      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      930,602      

Total Revenue 4,403,225    4,507,492    4,624,083    4,744,496    4,868,858    4,997,299    

% Change 2.37% 2.59% 2.60% 2.62% 2.64%

Proposed
GF Expenses: FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21

3 Personnel 3,203,925    3,255,490    3,292,417    3,320,721    3,343,380    3,353,690    

4 Operations & Maintenance 1,405,548    1,405,213    1,430,913    1,456,618    1,482,327    1,508,036    

Total Expenses 4,609,474    4,660,703    4,723,330    4,777,339    4,825,707    4,861,726    

% Change 1.11% 1.34% 1.14% 1.01% 0.75%

Excess Revenue Over 
Expenditures

(206,248)     (153,210)     (99,247)       (32,843)       43,151        135,574      

GF Reserve Balance Estimate 2,409,792    2,256,581    2,157,334    2,124,491    2,167,642    2,303,216    
Beginning Balance $2,616,040
(Audited 6/30/14)

Notes:

1

2

3

4 Operations & Maintenance costs are estimated at a 2% annual increase. Fiscal year 2015/16 includes department 
capital items.

Personnel Costs include normal merit increases for eligible employees

Sales Tax Estimates Provided by Muni-Services for FY 2015/16 through FY 2019/20. Estimate for FY's 2020/21 is 
based on a five-year average for FY's 2015/16 through FY 2019/20 of 3.47%

Property Tax and Motor Vehicle License Fees in Lieu of property taxes are based on historical data at 3% annually

City of Kerman
5-Year Financial Forecast-Scenario III

ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED

136



City Council Staff Report                             Page 52 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,125 11,946 15,000 13,000 15,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 1,234 1,263 1,940 1,940 1,849

TOTAL PERSONNEL 14,359 13,209 16,940 14,940 16,849

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Prof Services - Chamber Audio System Maintenance 0 0 0 0 500                    
521 02 00 General Supplies 646 966 1,000 1,700 1,200
552 01 00 Public Notice 789 1,369 2,000 700 1,000                 
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 31 3,500 5,550 1,000                 
555 06 00 Website Updates and Add Ons 1,153 1,140 0 0 0
556 00 00 Community & Public Relations 4,698 4,605 5,500 5,500 5,500                 
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 700 1,100 1,100 1,115                 

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 7,317 8,780 13,100 14,550 10,315

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,676 21,989 30,040 29,490 27,165

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (2,875)
Percentage of Change -9.6%

Budget Highlights:

CITY COUNCIL
100 6001

FY 2014/15 General Supplies Exceeded Budget for Purchase of Three Electronic Tablets for Council Members
FY 2014/15 Travel/Conferences Exceeded Budget due to Three Council Members Attending Annual League of CA Cities Conference
Overall budget reduction primarily due to less anticipated travel expenses in FY 2015/16

137



City Council Staff Report                             Page 53 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 51,242 59,986 55,000            55,000 75,000               

TOTAL 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 51,242 59,986 55,000 55,000 75,000
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 20,000

Percentage of Change 36.4%

Budget Highlights:

CITY ATTORNEY
100 6003

Increase in City Attorney Budget due to New Attorney at Higher Hourly Billing Rate 

138



City Council Staff Report                             Page 54 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,829 59,677 62,348 62,348 64,906
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,386
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,475 18,452 18,844 18,844 18,092

TOTAL PERSONNEL 18,304 78,130 81,192 81,192 84,384

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services-Sales Tax Consultant/Grants 15,662 19,224 14,000 3,000 5,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Successor Agency 0 2,880 1,500 500 0
510 13 00 Professional Services - EDC Fresno County 8,636 7,318 6,000 6,000 6,000
515 01 00 Utilities 12,723 11,899 13,000 15,000 15,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,000 906 1,500 1,200 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 312 244 800 550 800
521 07 00 Postage 1,200 1,600 1,600 150 300
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease 7,804 7,287 0 0 0
550 00 00 Insurance 62,132 73,809 79,020 75,297 70,697
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 6,846 7,517 6,500 7,800 7,800
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 798 0 0 0 0
552 02 00 Public Notice / Advertising 113 0 350 0 350
554 01 00 Training/Conferences/Meetings 939 371 1,000 500 1,000
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 6,265 6,342 6,500 6,500 6,500
555 05 00 Property Taxes 2,614 2,655 0 0 0
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 100 2,025 2,025 2,025 2,025
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,335 6,567 5,152 5,152 1,285

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 131,478 150,643 138,947 123,674 118,258

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,782 228,773 220,138 204,866 202,641

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (17,497)
Percentage of Change -7.9%

Budget Highlights:

Internal Service Fund - Three year contract for MS Office Suite product expired in FY 2014/15

CITY MANAGER

Contract Services - Moving expenses for State Mandated Cost reimbursements from City Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual 
cost

100 1002

Dues & Subscription - Dues for membership in League of Cities, COG and Chamber of Commerce
Professional Services - MuniServices/Web: Budget to cover sales tax consultant and monthly web hosting

139



City Council Staff Report                             Page 55 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 5,761 18,825 18,376 14,000 21,500
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 1,453 720 3,500 0
410 30 00 Overtime 0 28 410 250 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 459
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 2,728 7,292 7,757 7,757 8,442

TOTAL PERSONNEL 8,489 27,598 27,263 25,507 30,401

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Professional Fees 0 4,000 4,000 10,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Audit 13,800 13,800 13,800 14,300 14,300
510 14 00 Professional Services-Finance Acct Software Maint 1,257 4,400 4,400 4,400 4,400
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,648 250 1,500 1,500 1,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 0 250 850 250
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,122 1,050 2,000 2,000
540 00 00 Lease Expense (PFA Bond) 49,911 50,305 50,307 50,307 49,753
540 02 00 Equipment Rental - Lease (Copier/Postage/Mailer) 0 8,500 8,500 8,500
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 354 242 500 500 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 338 320 300 350 350
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 508 508 244

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 67,308 70,440 85,115 87,215 91,797

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 75,796 98,038 112,378 112,722 122,698
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 10,320

Percentage of Change 9.2%

Budget Highlights:

Capital Outlay for security shade at Finance customer service window

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Professional Services: CSMFO & GFOA Budget recognition fees. Moving expenses for State Manadated Cost reimbursements from City 
Manager to Administrative Services $4,000 annual cost. Mandatory CalPERS report for GASB 68 reporting for audit in FY 2015/16.

100 5005

140



City Council Staff Report                             Page 56 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 2,392             13,886 14,501            14,501 15,988
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 341
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 718                4,791 4,192             4,192 4,257

TOTAL PERSONNEL 3,110 18,676 18,693 18,693 20,586

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 14,370 8,267 8,700 7,300 9,100
510 02 00 Elections 3,142 0 3,400 2,700 0
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 668 348 350 350 400
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 311 8 500 0 500
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 295 305 350 315 350
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 627 627 1,115

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 18,786 8,928 13,927 11,292 11,465

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 21,896 27,605 32,620 29,985 32,052

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (568)
Percentage of Change -1.7%

Budget Highlights:

CITY CLERK
100 6004

Contract Services: Code Publishing and ECS (Laserfiche and New Novus Agenda)
Overall Decrease in budget due to Non-Election Year

141



City Council Staff Report                             Page 57 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 5,672 65,726 66,173 66,173 68,437
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 1,925 2,243 2,500 2,500 15,000
410 30 00 Overtime 0 0 0 4,000 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,461
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 3,593 24,982 24,998 24,938 27,153

TOTAL PERSONNEL 11,190 92,952 93,671 97,611 112,052

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - LAFCo 0 3,253 3,500 2,203 2,500
510 02 00 Contract Services - Sphere of Influence 0 0 15,000 0 15,000
510 10 00 Professional Services 508 0 1,500 0 50,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 1,688 1,415 1,500 1,000 1,500
521 07 00 Postage 0 299 300 150 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 181 381 200 225 250
552 01 00 Public Notice 457 300 550 450 550
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 200 55 150 50 150
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 3,115 181 1,057 1,057 866

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,149 5,884 23,757 5,135 71,116

CAPITAL
600 03 99 Capital Outlay - New Accounting Software System 0 1,100 3,300 2,200 1,100
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 1,772 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 2,872 3,300 2,200 1,100

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 17,338 101,707 120,728 104,946 184,268

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 63,540
Percentage of Change 52.6%

Budget Highlights:

PLANNING

Planning budget for FY 15/16 reflects a 52.6% increase due to addition of part-time wages for succession planning after two year position 
vacancy and projected need for Contract Planner assistance needed for upcoming commercial developments.

100 1008

142



City Council Staff Report                             Page 58 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

510 10 00 Professional Services 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 7,610 40,276 25,000 25,000 25,000

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 0
Percentage of Change 0.0%

Budget Highlights:

ENGINEERING

Professional Services - Yamabe & Horn: General engineering services for non-capital projects.

100 1010

143



City Council Staff Report                             Page 59 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 61,236 72,189 70,538 70,538 65,003
410 30 00 Overtime 470 799 800 1,000 500
410 35 00 Stand By 292 396 414 400 101
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,388
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 29,105 31,193 24,805 24,805 20,827

TOTAL PERSONNEL 91,103 104,576 96,557 96,743 87,819

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services - Weed Abatement 8,209 4,267 5,600 2,500 5,000
510 10 00 Professional Services-Plan Check 20,612 7,930 15,000 40,000 15,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 3,212 700 750 750 750
521 06 00 Uniforms 344 49 75 75 75
521 07 00 Postage 0 1,082 1,400 400 750
540 02 00 Equipment Rent 0 1,232 1,200 2,500 2,500
551 01 00 Communication - Telephone 976 1,135 950 1,000 1,000
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 662 528 650 600 600
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 12 124 400 100 150
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 125 1,412 150 400 400
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 8,574 5,303 7,977 7,977 7,545

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 42,727 23,762 34,152 56,302 33,770

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 228 300 300 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 133,830 128,565 131,009 153,345 121,589

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (9,420)
Percentage of Change -7.2%

Budget Highlights:

BUILDING

Overall reduction in budget mostly due to less hours classified for staff needed to fill in for Building Inspector

Professional Services-Plan Check: City Collects Plan Check Fees and Records as Revenue. City Remits Fees to Professional Plan Check 
Firm as an expense less 25% Administrative Fee as Net Revenue. See General Fund Revenue Building Plan Check Fees 

100 1042

144



City Council Staff Report                             Page 60 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 106,912 108,036 114,472 114,472 116,404
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 8,552 12,503 12,000 12,000 12,700
410 30 00 Overtime 111 0 500 0 500
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liablility 0 0 0 0 2,485
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 53,426 49,439 53,056 53,056 51,681

TOTAL PERSONNEL 169,000 169,978 180,028 179,528 183,770

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 1,200 1,200 1,200
515 01 00 Utilities 21,525 30,869 27,000 27,000 27,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 721 638 600 600 600
521 02 00 General Supplies 803 1,424 1,200 1,100 1,200
521 06 00 Uniforms 203 380 380 380 380
540 02 00 Equipment Rent - Lease 3,265 3,008 3,300 3,300 3,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 272 481 300 350 350
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 333 284 350 350 300
554 01 00 Travel/Conferences/Meetings 189 198 800 900 1,200
555 00 00 Dues & Subscriptions 0 190 800 750 800
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments 1,867 1,867 0 0 0
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 27,265 25,231 18,958 18,958 18,153

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 56,442 64,570 54,888 54,888 54,383

600 03 00 Capital Outlay - Improvements 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 500 500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 225,442 234,547 235,416 234,916 238,154

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 2,737
Percentage of Change 1.2%

Budget Highlights:

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL

100 2002

Slight budget increase in part time salaries due to minimum wage increase January 2016 and slight increase in conferences and meetings for 
staff professional development.

145



City Council Staff Report                             Page 61 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 20 00 Part-Time Wages 0 77                  9,880             9,880 10,000
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 0 12 1,482             1,462 1,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 0 89 11,362 11,342 11,480

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 6,025 8,212 26,700 26,500 26,500
510 10 00 Professional Services 0 0 3,000 2,500 2,500
521 03 00 Janitorial Supplies 18,629 18,234 7,000 7,000 7,500
521 04 00 Building Maintenance Supplies 7,555 7,645 8,000 8,000 8,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 150 150

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 32,516 35,531 45,010 44,150 44,650

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0
600 03 05 Capital Improv - Grandstand Lighting/Skate Ramp Repair 0 0 2,000             2,000                 0
600 03 00 Capital Improv - Police Department Building 0 5,547 0 0 0
600 03 06 Capital Improv - Senior Center Stair Tread Repair 0 0 2,500 2,300 0
600 03 07 Capital Improv - Kerckhoff Park Elec/Skate Park 0 0 1,800 1,800 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 10,194 6,300 6,100 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 42,433 45,813 62,672 61,592 56,130
Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (6,542)

Percentage of Change -10.4%

Budget Highlights:

BUILDING MAINTENANCE
100 2010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16
Decrease in Budget due to no capital improvements planned

146



City Council Staff Report                             Page 62 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 78,655            60,341            60,248            60,248               61,718               
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 2,485                 
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 30,982            21,001            20,466            20,466               20,334               

TOTAL PERSONNEL 109,637 81,342 80,714 80,714 84,537

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 6,941 8,600 8,000 8,500 8,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies 0 749 600 900 600
521 02 00 General Supplies & Postage 124 1,025 850 800 800
557 73 00 City Match to Senior Nutrition Grant (73) 0 12,032 12,890 14,640 14,591
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,436 2,694 2,500 2,700 2,700
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,166 3,045 6,437 6,437 7,985

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,667 28,145 31,277 33,977 35,176

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 123,303 109,487 111,991 114,691 119,713

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 7,722
Percentage of Change 6.9%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

100 2044

Slight Budget increase due to increased City match due to decline in meal donations

SENIOR CENTER SERVICES

147



City Council Staff Report                             Page 63 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,366             4,117             6,272             6,272                 6,785                 
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,787            13,071            13,800            15,600               16,500               
410 20 01 KUSD Part-Time Aquatic Staffing 0 0 0 1,600 2,400                 
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 145                    
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,636             3,530             4,298             4,298                 6,883                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 24,789 20,719 24,370 27,770 32,713

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 02 00 Special Supplies 1,176 1,060 800 800 800
521 03 00 Pool Supplies and Chlorine 0 0 0 0 8,623
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 127 127 125

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 1,176 1,060 927 927 9,548

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equip. 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 25,966 21,779 25,297 28,697 42,261

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 16,964
Percentage of Change 67.1%

Budget Highlights:

KUSD is utilizing City Aquatic part time staffing for their summer program and will reimburse the City for the expenses. (See revenue)
KUSD is supplying pool supplies and chlorine from dissolution of trust funds. (See revenue)

100 2047
AQUATICS PROGRAM

CAPITAL

Increase in part-time salary budget due to State of California minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

148



City Council Staff Report                             Page 64 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 10,611 6,862 10,454 10,454 11,308
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 4,047 4,135 7,300 7,125 7,300
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 241
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 5,917 4,513 5,593 5,593 5,480

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,575 15,510 23,347 23,172 24,329

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 1,280 945 2,940 750 1,200
515 01 00 Utilities 2,142 2,611 2,500 3,000 2,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 186 2 200 200 200
521 02 00 Program Supplies 2,417 3,464 4,000 6,000 5,000
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 17 25 25 25 25
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 212 212 209

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 6,042 7,046 9,877 10,187 9,134

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 26,617 22,556 33,224 33,359 33,463

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 239

Percentage of Change 0.7%

Budget Highlights:

PLANNED RECREATION
100 2062

CAPITAL

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

149



City Council Staff Report                             Page 65 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 13,415            9,625             14,636            14,636               15,831
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 13,511 16,671 21,000 22,000 22,000
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 338
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 9,083 6,554 8,908 8,908 8,299

TOTAL PERSONNEL 36,009 32,850 44,543 45,544 46,469

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
521 01 00 Office Supplies 377 48 0 0 0
521 02 00 Special Supplies 4,825 4,533 9,300 9,300 9,200
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 58 91 90 90 90
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 0 0 297 297 292

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 5,261 4,671 9,687 9,687 9,582

600 03 00 Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 41,270 37,521 54,230 55,231 56,051

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,821
Percentage of Change 3.4%

Budget Highlights:

YOUTH AND TEEN SERVICES

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

CAPITAL

100 2065

150



City Council Staff Report                             Page 66 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 42,358 46,333 46,080 46,080 47,474
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 12,706 12,230 15,925 15,500 16,500
410 30 00 Overtime 61 0 250 315 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,014
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 23,766 23,446 23,190 23,190 24,026

TOTAL PERSONNEL 78,890 82,009 85,445 85,085 89,014

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contracted Services (Maintenance) 3,555 3,016 3,600 3,600 3,600
515 01 00 Utilities 23,145 29,122 26,000 26,000 26,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 219 483 300 500 500
521 02 00 Special Supplies 5,059 10,306 4,500 4,500 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,098 2,493 2,300 2,600 2,600
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 317 284 350 300 300
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,926 0 816 816 801

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 39,319 45,704 37,866 38,316 38,301

600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1,548 1,915 2,500 2,500 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 119,758 129,628 125,811 125,901 127,314

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 1,504
Percentage of Change 1.2%

Budget Highlights:

COMMUNITY TEEN CENTER

Part-time salaries slight budget increase due to State of Ca minimum wage increase effective January 1, 2016.

CAPITAL

100 2069

151



City Council Staff Report                             Page 67 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 1,106,069 1,149,089 1,229,587 1,229,587 1,352,408
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 55,186 73,049 94,000 94,000 94,000
410 30 00 Overtime 50,987 41,935 50,000 45,000 50,000
410 35 00 Court Standby 2,199 1,682 2,500 2,500 2,500
410 36 00 FTO 1,009 1,122 1,000 3,500 5,200
410 38 00 Uniform Allowance 22,197 21,974 22,100 22,100 23,200
410 40 00 Holiday Pay 38,642 41,612 42,769 47,000 52,149
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 29,820
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 638,458 631,505 644,231 644,231 647,731

TOTAL PERSONNEL 1,914,747 1,961,967 2,086,188 2,087,918 2,257,008

510 11 00 Prof. Services - Emp. Hiring 10,341 3,022 4,000 10,000 6,000
510 12 00 Prof. Services - Lab Criminal 5,596 6,374 6,000 6,000 6,000
510 13 00 Prof. Services - Lab Employees 1,465 915 1,400 1,000 1,400
510 15 00 Assault/Medical Examinations 6,100 3,823 3,000 3,000 4,000
510 28 00 Dispatch 182,640 223,212 227,611 214,185 227,611
510 29 00 RMS-CAD 1,952 1,992 2,200 2,200 2,200
510 30 00 Booking Fees 824 2,112 1,000 1,200 1,200
510 31 00 Parking Citations 3,165 3,225 3,600 3,600 3,600
510 32 00 Live Scan Fingerprints 3,023 4,090 4,000 4,000 4,000
515 01 00 Utilities 17,286 17,201 16,000 18,000 18,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies 7,175 3,821 4,200 4,200 4,500
521 02 00 General Supplies 3,700 5,338 6,840 6,840 7,000
521 07 00 Postage 0 2,208 2,200 2,200 2,200
521 10 00 Uniform Supplies 3,772 796 4,000 4,000 4,000
521 12 00 Bullet Resistant Vests 2,727 0 1,500 1,500 1,625
521 35 00 Firearms Purchase 0 1,454 1,200 1,200 1,200
530 01 00 Equipment Maintenance - Repair 3,733 6,743 2,500 2,500 3,500
540 02 00 Equipment Rental 4,615 5,008 4,200 4,200 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 3,479 3,699 3,500 3,500 3,800
551 02 00 Communications - Cell Phone 2,316 2,110 2,600 2,600 2,600
551 05 00 Live Scan Line 8,047 7,555 8,000 8,100 8,100
551 06 00 MDT Monthly Access 2,713 3,420 3,600 3,600 3,600
552 02 00 Public Notice 0 0 500 0 500
554 01 00 Travel - Meetings 13,029 6,195 6,000 7,500 7,000
554 05 00 Training Supplies 2,077 2,757 3,150 3,150 3,150
555 02 00 Professional Dues and Codes 650 878 1,550 1,550 1,550

Forensic Software Annual Upgrade 0 0 0 0 3,100
Explorer Program 0 0 0 0 1,500

565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 192,299 203,588 295,399 295,399 303,727
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds - Two Additional Vehicles O/M 0 0 0 1,731 11,250

TOTAL OPERATIONS  & MAINTENANCE 485,887 521,536 619,750 616,955 652,413

600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Donated Equip. Installation PD Fleet 14,999 0 0 0 3,000
600 04 00 Capital Outlay-Vehicle Add Off. 1 FY14/15 1 FY15/16 0 0 0 0 26,000

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 14,999 0 0 0 29,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 2,415,633 2,483,503 2,705,938 2,704,873 2,938,421

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 232,484
Percentage of Change 8.6%

Budget Highlights:

CAPITAL

100 3011
POLICE

Police Dept. Received Radar Equipment From City of Clovis that Required Professional Installation of $150 Per Vehicle for Twenty (20) 
Vehicles for a total of $3,000. Two additional vehicles for proposed Police Office staff increase.

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

152



City Council Staff Report                             Page 68 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 6,063 26,705 27,849 27,849 23,977
410 30 00 Overtime 305 28 0 500 1,000
410 35 00 Stand By 240 0 0 0 0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 512
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 13,853 12,302 11,762 11,762 9,912

TOTAL PERSONNEL 20,461 39,035 39,611 40,111 35,401

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 5,603 10,460 8,000 8,000 9,500
521 01 00 Office Supplies 47 12 300 300 300
521 02 00 General Supplies 2,764 2,459 3,000 3,000 3,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 34 151 155 350 350
521 07 00 Postage 149 210 150 150 150
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 256 244 300 300 300
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 309 0 300 100 2,000
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 4,745 3,639 8,676 8,676 8,052

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 13,907 17,174 20,881 20,876 23,652

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Machinery & Equipment 0 0 300 300 300

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 300 300 300

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 34,368 56,209 60,791 61,287 59,353

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (1,439)
Percentage of Change -2.4%

Budget Highlights:

ANIMAL CONTROL

Overall budget decrease due to resignation of full time Animal Control Officer reduction in salary costs.

100 3041

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

153



City Council Staff Report                             Page 69 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 54,872 53,323 42,752 42,752 53,663
410 30 00 Overtime 2,735 2,921 3,000 3,000 3,000
410 35 00 Stand By 1,817 1,915 915 1,200 1,050
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,146
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 28,824 27,360 21,937 21,937 28,254

TOTAL PERSONNEL 88,247 85,519 68,604 68,889 87,113

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
515 01 00 Utilities 4,805 4,830 5,000 6,000 5,000
515 02 00 Utilities - Old Town "LME" 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054 15,054
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 207 560 400 400 400
521 05 00 Park Supplies 13,318 16,937 16,000 17,500 17,500
521 06 00 Uniforms 307 1,440 310 300 300
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 720 934 750 750 750
551 02 00 Cellular Phone 331 345 425 425 400
554 01 00 Training / Meetings 0 59 250 250 250
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (Fresno Irrig. District) 0 0 1,875 1,867 1,875
555 05 00 Property Taxes 0 0 2,655 2,668 2,675
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 16,477 14,739 13,153 13,153 16,885

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 51,219 54,898 55,872 58,367 61,089

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Improvements 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9,917 4,647 0 0 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 149,384 145,064 124,476 127,256 148,202

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 23,726
Percentage of Change 19.1%

Budget Highlights:

PARKS LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

Increase in Park Supplies for New Sprinkler Time Clocks

100 4010

Split Building Maintenance Budget and Parks Landscaping Budget beginning FY 15-16

Budget Increase in Personnel due to Reclassification of Employee from Building Department to Parks

154



City Council Staff Report                             Page 70 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘D’ 
Resolution Amending Fiscal Year 2014/2015 General Fund Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



City Council Staff Report                             Page 71 of 71 
General Fund Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 

APPROVING A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO HIRE ONE  
FULL TIME POLICE OFFICER  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman has determined an additional full-time police  

officer is needed; and 

        WHEREAS, it is estimated the cost for the full-time police officer at Step A for the period of 

May 7, 2015 through the end of the current Fiscal Year June 30, 2015 including benefits to be 

$8,333.95; and 

           WHEREAS, an additional vehicle is needed for a full-time police officer at a cost of $26,000 

fully equipped; and 

            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Kerman hereby 

amends the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 General Fund budget in the amount of $34,333.95 to hire one 

additional police officer. 

            The foregoing resolution was approved and adopted by the City Council of the City of Kerman at 

a regular meeting held on the 6th day of May, 2015, by the following vote: 

 

    AYES:  

    NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

          ___________________________ 
       Stephen B. Hill 
       Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 
___________________________  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 

156


	Agenda
	Letter from Tina Guidry Requesting Changes to Kerman Municipal Code Related to Domestic Animals
	Guidry letter

	Minutes
	April 15, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Proclamation - Proclaiming May as Building and Safety Month
	Proclamation

	Resolution Appointing Hilda Cantu Montoy as City Attorney
	Staff Report - Legal Services Agreement

	Resolution Appointing and Reappointing Members to Community Service and Recreation Commission
	Staff Report

	Resolution Affirming Use of Sole Source Purchase for the Kids Climbing Wall Using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds
	Staff Report - Sole Source 

	Abatement Hearing for the Removal of Weeds and Rubbish
	Staff Report - Abatement Hearing

	Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 14452 W. Kearney Boulevard
	Staff Report - Hernandez Utilities

	Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1
	Staff Report - LMD Intent to Levy

	Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016
	Staff Report-Preliminary Budget Report


